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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability
nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of the emerging
nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the companies operate.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website operated
by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid announcements in
gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access to the
GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange fakes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liabilities whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”] of Town Health International Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”| collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM lListing Rules”) for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading; and (3] all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and
careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general
meeting (the “Meeting”) of the shareholders of Town Health
International Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
will be held at Shop No 1-2, Level 3, Hilton Plaza
Commercial Centre, No. 3-9 Shatin Centre Street, Shatin,
New Territories, Hong Kong on Thursday, 24th July, 2003,
at 9:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To consider and adopt the audited consolidated
financial statements and the reports of the board of
directors of the Company (“Board”) and the auditors
for the year ended 31st March, 2003;

2. To re-elect Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet as an executive
director of the Company;

3. To elect Mr. Chan Kam Chiu as an independent

non-executive director of the Company;

4. To elect Mr. Wai Kwok Hung as an independent

non-executive director of the Company;

5. To fix the number of directors of the Company

("Directors”) at six;

6. To authorise the Board to fix the remuneration of
the Directors;

7. To appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as

auditors of the Company and authorise the Board
to fix their remuneration; and
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to pass the following resolutions (“Resolutions”) as

ordinary resolutions:

A. “THAT:

(@)  the general mandate granted to the
Directors to exercise the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with
unissued shares in the capital of the
Company as approved by the
shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 23rd May, 2003 be
and is hereby revoked (without
prejudice to any valid exercise of such
general mandate prior to the passing

of this Resolution);

(b)  subject to paragraph (d) below, the
exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with
(i) additional shares of HK$0.10 each
in the share capital of the Company
("Shares™); or (ii) if the reduction of
the issued share capital of the
Company pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held
on 23rd May, 2003 (the "Capital
Reduction”) becomes unconditional
and effective, additional new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in the share

&

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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(d)

capital of the Company (“New
Shares”) arising upon the Capital
Reduction becoming unconditional and
effective, and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which would
or might require the exercise of such
power be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (b) above
shall authorise the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which would
or might require the exercise of such
power after the end of the Relevant
Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of
share capital allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be
allotted and issued (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (b) above, otherwise than
pursuant to (i) a Right Issue (as
hereinafter defined); (ii) any share
option scheme or similar arrangement
for the time being adopted for the
grant or issue to employees of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of options to subscribe for shares of
the Company; or (iii) an issue of
shares of the Company as scrip
dividends or any similar arrangement
providing for the allotment of shares
of the Company in lieu of the whole

or part of a dividend on shares of the
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Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company,
shall not in total exceed 20 per cent.
of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in
issue (aa) as at the date of this
Resolution; or (bb) if the Capital
Reduction becomes unconditional and
effective, as at the time immediately
after the Capital Reduction has
become unconditional and effective,
and the said approval shall be limited
accordingly; and

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period
from the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

0 the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the

Company;

(i)  the passing of an ordinary
resolution by the Shareholders
in general meeting revoking or
varying the authority given to
the Directors under this

Resolution; and

(i) the expiration of the period
within which the next annual
general meeting of the
Company is required by the
articles of association of the

Company, the Companies Law

&

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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of the Cayman Islands or any
applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands to be held.

“Right Issue” means an offer of shares
in the Company or warrant, options
or other securities giving rights to
subscribe for shares of the Company
open for a period fixed by the
Directors to shareholders of the
Company or any class thereof on the
register on a fixed record date in
proportion to their then holdings of
such shares or any class thereof
(subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in
relation to fractional entitlements or
having regard to any restrictions or
obligations under the laws of, or the
requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange

in any territory outside Hong Kong)."

B. “THAT:

(a)

the general mandate granted to the
Directors to exercise the powers of the
Company to purchase the issued
Shares as
Shareholders (as defined in the
resolution set out in the notice

approved by the

convening this meeting as Resolution
8A) pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the extraordinary general

meeting of the Company held on 23rd
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May, 2003 be and is hereby revoked
(without prejudice to any valid exercise
of such general mandate prior to the

passing of this Resolution);

the exercise by the Directors during
the Relevant Period (as hereinafter
defined) of all the powers of the
Company to purchase (i) the Shares;
or (ii) if the Capital Reduction (as
defined in the resolution set out in
the notice convening this meeting as
Resolution 8A) becomes unconditional
and effective, the New Shares (as
defined in the resolution set out in
the notice convening this meeting as
Resolution 8A), subject to paragraph
(©) below and in accordance with all
applicable laws and regulations, be
and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

the total number of shares to be
purchased by the Company pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (b) above
during the Relevant Period shall not
exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue (i) as at the
date of this Resolution; or (ii) if the
Capital Reduction becomes
unconditional and effective, as at the
time immediately after the Capital
Reduction has become unconditional
and effective, and the said approval

shall be limited accordingly; and

&
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(d)

for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period

from the passing of this Resolution

until whichever is the earliest of:

0

(i)

(iii)

the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting of the

Company;

the passing of an ordinary
resolution by the Shareholders
in general meeting revoking or
varying the authority given to
the Directors under this

Resolution; and

the expiration of the period
within which the next annual
general meeting of the
Company is required by the
articles of association of the
Company, the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands or any
applicable laws of the Cayman

Islands to be held”

C. “THAT subject to the passing of the

resolutions set out in the notice convening

this meeting as Resolutions 8A and 8B above,

the general mandate granted to the Directors

pursuant to the approval granted under the

resolution set out in the notice convening

this meeting as Resolution 8A above and for

the time being in force to exercise the power

of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
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shares of the Company be and is hereby
extended by the addition to the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company which may be allotted or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted
by the Directors pursuant to such general
mandate an amount representing the
aggregate nominal amount of shares of the
Company which has been purchased by the
Company since the granting of such general
mandate pursuant to the exercise by the
Directors of the powers of the Company to
purchase such shares of the same nominal
value pursuant to the approval granted under
the resolution set out in the notice convening
this meeting as Resolution 8B, provided that
such amount shall not exceed 10 per cent.
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue (i) as at the
date of this Resolution; or (ii) if the Capital
Reduction (as defined in the resolution set
out in the notice convening this meeting as
Resolution 8A) becomes unconditional and
effective, at the time when the Capital
Reduction becomes unconditional and

effective.”

By Order of the Board

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
Cho Kwai Chee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25th June, 2003

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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FELRZMBREHFERE - Principal Place of Business and Head Office:

&8 No. 616 & 617

7 H Level 6, Tower I|

R T R R B Grand Central Plaza

F2rE61E Shatin

616K 617= Hong Kong

M ERE Registered Office:

Ugland House Ugland House

P. O. Box 309 P.O. Box 309

George Town George Town

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

Cayman Islands Cayman lIslands

British West Indies British West Indies

B 5E Notes:

1. BERERNAREsRREERE - AHE 1. A form of proxy for use at the Meeting is enclosed herewith. @
MRS A ERO 2RE - HERERE RS A member, who is the holder of two or more Shares,
WHRE ERE - HRIREEE —URERE entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting, is entitled to
B URRRERERE - SEALTHA appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote on his/
BEARNBRE - MZTZR—RE - 8l her behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
REFEEFETHBUEZERRZ KRN If more than one proxy is so appointed, the appointment
2B KER - shall specify the number and class of Shares in respect of

which each such proxy is so appointed.

2. REZEXRBEHEZEEAREEREAE 2. The form of proxy shall be in writing under the hand of

BRERFEEE JWZEEARZEER - A the appointor or of his/her attorney duly authorised in
BERBEMNMEARNESHEMEE A writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under
B RERRREESE - its seal or under the hand of any officer or attorney

authorised to sign the same.

3. RERHERGEYNE LREZARARQFR 3. Any member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is
R oARZE—UHBZAREREF - R entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend and
RARRERRE - XZEALTHERERRLF vote instead of him/her. A proxy need not be a member
ARER o of the Company.

:s@zeﬁfﬁﬁ\ﬁr
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e
5%

V%

¥

f

n
X

R A & X & =@

H
=

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

BREMHNINETREZ ZRRZERRE
REREBZEREEXEMREXH (WE)
FEARBFARETAZREERREX
HZEE  FEERARGREECFNES (B
FIFRME) 6 5E BT I 4\ A
ERRARNEBBZBENBFELNRERE
BAERAR i AEBEF S LITESS
SRRERTEEPLHT - FRBEX -

BHZERZRERREZERBE - BRERIIATK
BRELFEASHEEMNES RFBERM
E)UREERE  REBERAT  RERZE
RIRABRE BRI -

WMEREROBERFAARE » BIE[Z
EATHABRBRZTRRARERNG LR
ReOBIMESHE-RESBEA  ENEZ
UBRBAANREAG  ARBARAEZH
BEREZEMRERERZEREREZ
—BRAXN - At UALQRKRREM
FEAFREZEEEREZAERARR
1% o

Annual Report 2003

4.

6.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy which must be
completed in accordance with the instructions printed
thereon, together with the power of attorney or other
authority (if any) under which it is signed, or a certified
copy of such power or authority, must be lodged at the
branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong,
Tengis Limited, at G/F, Bank of East Asia Harbour View
Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
Meeting or any adjourned meeting thereof (as the case
may be).

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not
preclude members from attending and voting in person at
the Meeting or at any adjourned meeting thereof (as the
case may be) should they so wish, and in such event, the
form of proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

Where there are joint registered holders of any Share(s),
any one of such joint holders may vote at the Meeting,
either in person or by proxy, in respect of such Share(s)
as if he/she is solely entitled thereto, but if more than
one of such joint holders are present at the Meeting, the
most senior shall alone be entitled to vote, whether in
person or by proxy. For this purpose, seniority shall be
determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members of the Company in respect of the
joint holding of the Share(s).

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Given the disappointing economic condition, the year ended
31st March, 2003 was a difficult year for the Group. A
number of the Group’s medical centres/dental practices
and investments were not able to meet their respective
performance targets. The Group has been taking aggressive
measures during the year to enhance the Group’s market

competitiveness.

Mission

The Group aims at becoming a provider of high quality,
generally affordable and comprehensive private healthcare
services including physical, social and psychological care in
primary, secondary and tertiary levels for preventive
healthcare and maintenance of health of citizens of all
ages in Hong Kong and eventually to people in other regions

in Asia.

Healthcare and dental services

The Group was principally engaged in the provision of
healthcare and dental services. As at 31st March, 2003,
the Town Health Network consisted 39 medical centres

and dental practices.

The Group continues to face difficulties in maintaining
revenue growth for this segment of business. This difficult
situation is largely attributable to the general downturn in
the economy, cut-throat competition from peers and the
imbalanced distribution of resources between the public

and private healthcare sector.
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On the cost side, the Group has implementing a series of
aggressive cost-cutting measures to control its expenditures.
For example, the Group has restructured the remuneration
package for its professional staff and has been actively
negotiating with the landlords of its various premises for
reductions in rental. The Group has also closed down a
number of under-performing medical centres/dental
practices so as to re-allocate the scarce resources to other

promising areas.

Expansion of scope of business

On top of its core business — provision of healthcare and
dental services, the Group has also been active in expanding
its scope of business in the healthcare field. During the
year under review, the Group started a number of new
healthcare-related businesses such as hearing assessment
(including sale of hearing-aid devices) and retail sale of
traditional Chinese medicine, etc. The Directors believes
that, by entering into these new markets, the Group can
strengthen its revenue bases and lessen its reliance on the
performance of the segment of provision of healthcare

and dental services.

Bio-medical technologies and
para-medical services

The Group has invested strategically in companies engaging
in the research, development and commercialization of
cutting-edge molecular genomic diagnostic technology. Such
technology can be applied to the diagnosing and testing of
certain type of cancers at their early stage. A number of
commercial diagnosis packages have already been

introduced to the market.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited



B> T E R AT -
AE-RLRELHH I HRIRS
BOAKERR-—BEIEFEREAZRNEER
fii - JREABANSEZZGUEDEF
® e NEBRBOKRNREC RAKES
KIEAR @ e e

AEBENRENKEHR
B am e o

HEBE QT
R - A B R T % B

(M2 - FREMNEEBRAR) -
7R ER B W BN A T AR B O T A D Je AT HR AR
BIERMRME -

AEBETHEERERERERER AT

(EFRED) N 2BERETELEEBR AT
(R%]) » REBRE R Z WAL T 212 I H

Bein R HAE -

NTEER(FERBE_ST=F=A=+—
B H29.840R A I AR NEBEXK
RPECEBLUITEER)  FHRER&ER
BE URFHERERNTE -

T F B &
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In addition to molecular genomic technology, the Group
has also invested in a magnetic resonance imaging (MRI)
scanner located in a local private hospital. MRI is an imaging
technique used primarily in medical settings to produce
high quality images of the inside of the human body for
diagnosis purposes. The Group’s investment in the MRI

generated favourable returns to the Group.

Disposal of associates

During the year under review, the Group disposed of its
entire interests in Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Company Limited
("WYT Medicine”) to Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
Limited ("WYT Holdings", formerly Dailywin Group Limited),
a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
As consideration, the Group received new shares and

convertible notes of WYT Holdings.

The Group also disposed of its entire interests in
Luxembourg Medicine Company Limited (“Luxembourg”)
to Wang On Group Limited (“Wang On"). As consideration,
the Group received shares of WYT Holdings from Wang
On.

WYT Holdings, over which the Group holds an equity
interest of 29.84% as at 31st March, 2003, is principally
engaged in the business of Chinese pharmaceutical
(through WYT Medicine), assembly of watches and

manufacture of cases, as well as retail of watch and bags.
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The Directors believe that the disposals of the Group's
stake in WYT Medicine and Luxembourg, both were
previously privately-owned, in exchange for interest in WYT
Holdings, which is a listed company, will provide more

flexibility to the Group.

Future prospect

The current market is tough and a significant turn-around
is not expected to happen in the near future. The Group
will use its best effort to sustain in this difficult time. On
the revenue side, the Group will focus on strengthening
and expanding its revenue bases by diversifying itself into
new market segments, as well as through the promotion
of high-profit-margin services to its customers. On the cost
side, the Group will continuously monitor its cost structure
and cost effectiveness so as to maintain its competitiveness

in the market.

Appreciation

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
gratitude to our customers, suppliers, shareholders and
business associates for their continuous support to the
Group. | would also like to thank my colleagues for their

effort and hard work rendered over the past year.

Cho Kwai Chee

Chairman

24th June, 2003

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited



=

....................... =
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

FERKRE

HE_TT=F=A=+—HILFE K&
B 8152 ¥ 5 4)123,878,0008 T (ZEZ =
F —#7100,030,0007% 7T.) K % 5 FE (k4 F) 49
4,741,000/ 7T (ZZFZ — % — 42,029,000/8

TT) - BREXERFNKSEN (BT _F -
0.4%8M) - RRBERERENHBARER
R EEeESTEREE_TT=F=

A=+—HLFERERPEE - IEEF
BREARAEBE XK HEEREHE

Bt % @ B

AEBEZRBHWAHKEREERNTE
R - EEBEFEERN  AREERAXHZ
WARR T EASEN -

R REBEFARNAREZ2HWAK
o AEBEEHEBERETERRGE:
BE4924,342,0008 0 © BIEMERERELRF

o

pi

REEEZE RZTTE_F=
T—BIEFEZENE DB B39.5%Kk
4350 o &) R T PR = B G B Ik BE
EmZENEREER -

—EE=F

2 [ E

3

]
ANALYSIS

g

ND

>

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31st March, 2003, the Group recorded
a turnover of approximately HK$123,878,000 (2002 —
approximately HK$100,030,000) and a net profit
attributable to shareholders of approximately HK$4,741,000
(2002 — approximately HK$2,029,000). The basic earnings
per share was approximately HKO.5 cents (2002 -
approximately HKO.4 cents). To retain cashflow for future
business development, the Board does not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31st
March, 2003. All earnings will be retained to finance the

continuing development of the Group's business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group generates most of its revenue from the provision
of healthcare and dental services. During the year under
review, the Group experienced pressure on revenue growth

from this segment of business.

However, the Group successfully created new sources of
income during the year. The Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$24,342,000 from the sale of healthcare
and pharmaceutical products which include hearing aid

devices and traditional Chinese medicine.

The gross profit margin of the Group for the years ended
31st March, 2003 and 2002 was 39.5% and 43.5%
respectively. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
lower gross margin associated with the sale of healthcare

and pharmaceutical products.
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Administrative expenses increased in the current year. Such
increase was mainly attributable to the expenses incurred
by the segment of sale of healthcare and pharmaceutical
products, operations of which were commenced during
the year. Also, the Group re-assessed the collectibility of
the accounts receivable outstanding at 31st March, 2003.
In view of the prevailing poor economic environment, the
Group took a conservative approach and made additional

provision over the outstanding balances.

During the year under review, the Group disposed of its
entire interest in WYT Medicine and Luxembourg. The Group
recorded a gain of approximately HK$44.4 million on these

disposals.

Amortization of goodwill arising on acquisitions of associates
increased by approximately HK$3.7 million. Such increase
was mainly attributable to the additional amortization
charged on goodwill arising on new investments acquired

during the year (or near the end of the prior year).

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited



g B oW B9 W

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

HRMERERE  AREEHEZREE
ZURKEEEMEEREETHREN - B
FELER  SHBRA TR HSRE L&
(HE

. EEF WENBARTRABRITE

PGB ERRBTE-T5%

Ho REBEEHMTELEEELT

ARBEFH TWREH-_ZZ_FM

A—BR BEERABLE+5#

He ENEMEBREENRE_STT=

FZAZT—BALEFEZHBEI DY
842,000/%8 T °

. AEBECEHHEBEFEEZREE -
BERENBAT RERTEZH
ISR T =F=A=+—RH2%
2 AEBBERERETUHEEEE
H R 1B U85 18 B 48 496,695,000 T ©

b EESN T R BETIE B AT Z RBEREM
REBEELMNGREL - AREZRER

EREERTETIYE -

HE_ZZ=-F=-A=+—HILFEZRE
FE(E % R 404,741,0008 T (ZET -F— 4
2,029,000/ 7T)

Given the difficult market condition, the Group has
performed an extensive review of the useful economic life
and carrying value of its various assets. For prudence sake,

the following additional charges or provisions were made:

. In previous year, goodwill arising on acquisitions of
subsidiaries and medical and dental practices was
amortized over a period from 10 to 20 years. The
Group has re-assessed the useful economic lives of
these assets and has decided with effect from 1st
April, 2002, goodwill is amortised over a period of
5 to 10 years. The change in amortisation period
has increased the amortization charge for the year
ended 31st March, 2003 by approximately
HK$842,000.

. The Group has reviewed the carrying value of its
intangible assets including goodwill arising on
acquisitions of subsidiaries, medical and dental
practices and associates as at 31st March, 2003.
The Group has decided to make provision for
impairment losses of approximately HK$6,695,000

for certain of these assets.

The above additional charges and provisions were made
for prudence sake under the current economic conditions.

The Group's cash flows and operations will not be affected.
The profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended

31st March, 2003 was approximately HK$4,741,000 (2002
— approximately HK$2,029,000).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As at 31st March, 2003, the Group held cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$68,581,000 (2002 -
approximately HK$49,347,000), out of which
HK$40,000,000 (2002 - nil) was pledged with a bank for
the grant of credit facilities. Net current assets amounted
to approximately HK$52,247,000 (2002 — approximately
HK$31,389,000). Current ratio (defined as total current
assets divided by total current liabilities) was 1.79 (2002
- 1.62).

As at 31st March, 2003, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of approximately HK$58,556,000 (2002 -
HK$5,840,000), of which approximately HK$40,641,000
(2002 — approximately HK$840,000) was secured by bank
deposits and certain land and buildings of the Group. Out
of the total bank borrowings, approximately HK$56,421,000
(2002 — HK$2,576,000), which included overdraft of
approximately HK$39,848,000 (2002 — nil) pledged by
HK$40,000,000 bank deposits of the Group, was due within
1 year. As at 31st March, 2003, the interest rate charged
by the banks ranged from 2.1% to 5.0%.

The amount due to minority shareholders of certain
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$944,000
(2002 — approximately HK$392,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31st March, 2003, the Group had shareholders’ equity
of approximately HK$254,881,000 (2002 — approximately
HK$208,926,000). Debt-to-equity ratio (defined as total
liabilities divided by shareholders’ equity) was 0.27
(2002 - 0.26).

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of
the Group were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. As at
31st March, 2003, the Group had no significant exposure
to foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group principally operates in two business segments,
one is the provision of healthcare and dental services and
the other is the sale of healthcare and pharmaceutical
products. The segment of provision of healthcare and dental
services accounted for approximately 80.3% of the Group's

consolidated turnover.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

A breakdown of the number of staff of the Group by
responsibilities as at 31st March, 2003 and 2002 is set

out below:
2003 2002
mE NI E Medical and dental practitioners 51 51
B & Assistant nurses 121 13
BEIBAEB Management 5 6
T/ XEXE Administration/Clerical support 18 29
195 199

FMERBHOXENREE °

AEBEZREANEARBARREERET R

BN - RETHMIN  AEBITGEAS
BzExEREARBELRISEALLBRE
TAEMEBT -

All the employees are stationed in Hong Kong.

The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on
industry practices and individual's performance and
experience. On top of regular remuneration, discretionary
bonus and share option may be granted to eligible staff by
reference to the Group's results as well as the individual's

performance.

—RE=F5H

ERERBRZRERAL2A

L




5%

&

S S

oW #®f

T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AEEHE T MGRHRITEEME - £%
BARERSEMATHEEE - 1o K&
B ALERRERNMANS R ERA
B -

XAEE

RZZTE=F=A=+—8  AEEHRELA
i & N A X 2 7,060,0008 T (ZE T =
& : 7,060,000 7T.) $R17 = & 58 if (7 BF 75 4
BIREDQRIER - ZABERRADACEE
#171,600,000 7T (ZZEZ 4 : 6,640,000
BIT) o

Annual Report 2003

The Group maintains good relationship with its staff. There
has not been any interruption to its operations as a result
of labour disputes. In addition, the Group provides
mandatory provident fund and free-medical consultation to

its employees.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st March, 2003, the Company had provided a
corporate guarantee to a financial institution in respect of
the bank facilities granted to a former associate to the
extent of HK$7,060,000 (2002 — HK$7,060,000). The
amount of facilities utilized by the former associate
amounted to approximately HK$1,600,000 (2002 -
HK$6,640,000).

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

TRAE-ZZZFTANANEZHERE
B(HERER])MBEZEFBER  BAK
EEE_ZTZ=F=RA=1—HILZER
EBERZLEB N

REERERRL XK HE

Business objectives as
stated in the Prospectus

BRZBEKPL:

Additional medical centres:

- B+ HEEKF DL
Increase the number of medical centres
by 20

- FREBA BHETR]ER
R ERERERERBEELE R OH
wmER 2 AT
Explore the feasibility of introducing the
Town Health Centre Network concept
in the Mainland China by setting up a

“prototype” practice with a local partner

An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in
the Company's prospectus issued on 9th October, 2000
(the “Prospectus”) with the Group's actual business progress

up to 31st March, 2003 is set out below:

EMXKER XKEEZ22F (W
B)

Actual business progress/change in
business objectives (if any)

EEBZREIEMEK I RNEFERR O - ER()EE
REZETE  QMERREBERBAERI KL
T RGHEESERZBBAETS  HAEEEK
SHBEBRORKREEEE -

6 new medical centres were established in strategic
locations in Hong Kong. Given (1) the overall downturn of
the Hong Kong economy; (2) the imbalance in resources
allocation between the private and public healthcare sector;
and (3) the difficulty in recruiting quality medical
practitioners, the Group is cautious in establishing new

medical centres.

BEMWN  AEESEEREEB BT S ER I
BRETSEEMARER 2 HK -

Nevertheless, the Group will continue to keep track on the
medical market development in Hong Kong and adjust its

pace of expansion to respond to any market changes.
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EF?EH"E&F)? I ¥EKE BEREKER EBBEZ2E (W
Business objectives as Actual business progress/change in
stated in the Prospectus business objectives (if any)

REBEGTEFEKRERETS - WEEAZEZAME
B EES  RARBAREY [REIED - A - ERN
SNEIR BRI EREE TS E B AR 2 BB 280 I B R B
MHEBGFHN  WEFGORTEREZERAMEER @ FF
EEAZEE LI -

The Group has reviewed the healthcare market in the
Mainland China and approached or been approached by a
number of potential local partners for the setting up of the
“prototype” practice there. However, given the stringent
regulatory framework in relation to foreign investment in

private healthcare market and the keen market competition

in the Mainland China, the Directors have decided to
temporarily suspend this project until more promising

opportunity arises.

BRESBEHRL:

Additional integrated medical centre:

B EfRfR A B RO EEBEZRBIEMBKIMEFNGEEETER L - AEE

Establish 5 integrated medical centres MEBBERREBRERE TS - WIREBTSEEMAEE
FZ K e

2 new integrated medical centres were established in
strategic locations in Hong Kong. The Group will continue
to keep track on the medical market in Hong Kong and

adjust its pace of expansion to respond to market changes.

Annual Report 2003
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Business objectives as
stated in the Prospectus

BRTEDH
Additional dental practices:

HTETEZM
Increase the number of dental practices by
10

PHERBRERNBEE:

Electronic clinic and healthcare

information database:
- EBEZERNREMNEEAP® W
www.health-easy.comz W&

Further develop and expand the
Group's health portal www.health-

easy.com
- BUABRITESERE
Establish a medical and dental
database
- 5| A LI R
Introduce inter-medical centre

consultation services

- RERBHBRLOEKZBAHELBL
B2 RH

Introduce on-line follow-up consultation
services for patients of the Town Health

Centre Network

* ¥ B #® B B
BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

BEREBER EKEE22E (W
")

Actual business progress/change in
business objectives (if any)

EEBZRBEIEMEIRR A NETEZMH - AEBBEER
EEEIRBBMS 2 ER  URBEMSEEMARER
Z K e

6 more dental practices were established in various strategic
locations in Hong Kong. The Group will continue to keep
track on the dental consultation market development in
Hong Kong and adjust its pace of expansion to respond to
the market changes.

§2 A Pk

Health portal
AEERBE_ZEZE=F=-A=+—HILVBFERE—
Z= B3 B H 2 B A PIA uhwww.health-easy.com + & Z R A 40
T~

The Group closed down its health portal www.health-
easy.com at the last quarter of the financial year ended
31st March, 2003, owing principally to the following
reasons:

- Z—EWWE%E MU EH DMEERSEAAERS
ZHEE
high on-going maintenance cost in terms of content
update, web hosting, internet connection, etc..

- KERRZRERMIEIE
unsatisfactory response from public.

- HEEARRAEBEMTK -

little contribution to promoting the Group's business.
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RERREBMACXKE BERXBER XBEEZ2E2DH (W
ES ")

Business objectives as Actual business progress/change in

stated in the Prospectus business objectives (if any)

- HESLHERBER BERTEHEE
Introduce on-line sale of healthcare  Medical and dental database.
products AEERFEBEFEHHLLAEFEA o

- RUBXEBERBRE  AAE The Group is in the process of digitizing its patient records
TREHERDIHEMD into electronic format.

Set up business-to-business channels

for procurement of pharmaceutical ZHLEIE - H LB

products to medical and dental Inter-medical centre consultation/On-line follow up

practitioners consultation
AEECEEEEZEPOLOERRREBZES - UHATEF
DR,/ WBLEEY  BBBEABRRAZEBESAKRE -
EBABMRAEBERARBES IR DERN - BEF
BERTEEZIER  AHREZBERHE L2EEAS
BERRARIBHED -

The Group has installed teleconferencing system in selected

medical centres and run pilot tests on inter-medical centre
consultation and on-line follow up consultation. The
feedback from medical practitioners and patient was
discouraging. They in general preferred the conventional
face-to-face mode of consultation. The Directors have
decided to temporarily suspend this project until such a
real-time on-line mode of consultation gains popularity in

the future.

Annual Report 2003
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Business objectives as
stated in the Prospectus
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EREKER XKEE228 (X
)

Actual business progress/change in
business objectives (if any)

i EREEm

On-line sale of healthcare products
ENHEBREREFABZRAARE  AEEEEE AR
BERRUELSIHEE EFGRRBENTHE,Y
WEBYZREE UEBREAEBSEENHELZEAR -
Owing to the adverse sentiment towards internet and
e-commerce, the Group has temporarily suspended the
set-up of its on-line distribution channel for healthcare
products. The Directors will re-assess the consumers'’
behaviour on on-line purchasing in the future so as to

determine when the Group will re-activate the project.

MERBERR I BRI B FRE
Business-to-business channels for procurement of
pharmaceutical products
AEECREERBREFZABRFERE B - &
ERPOBMEAERATHMAMANER CRERMOIER
BmilE  AEERERNEAEBECRBREFEZH
JERMEE AR BHRDE R ZITHREE -

The Group has already automated its internal process for
ordering and stock-keeping of pharmaceutical products. Each
medical centre can now place requisitions for
pharmaceutical products with the purchasing team of the
head office through internet. The Group is currently
exploring the possibility to link the Group’s procurement
system with the major suppliers in a view to lessen the

administrative burden to both parties.
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EF?EH"E&F)? I ¥EKE BEREKER EBBEZ2E (W
Business objectives as Actual business progress/change in
stated in the Prospectus business objectives (if any)

BHRPHEIER

Traditional Chinese medicine

development:

- FRREEBER XEEROKE KR-ZTE=F=-A=+—8 AEERFRELTEEELR
X5 BURWEB=FEHTEE BRAF229.84%HE - ZRAFRIEBENBARMITE
Establish or acquire three traditional ZEEI AR A 7 (Hiﬁifiﬁﬂ NEBEEPBREEHEE
Chinese medicine consultation centres (2 FHBAREZTEER) o

through strategic alliance and/or As at 31st March, 2003, the Group holds a 29.84%

opportunistic acquisition shareholding interest in Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings
- EHNAEBERE—SPBEFI L 2EH  Limited which, through its subsidiary Wai Yuen Tong
X B Medicine Company Limited ("WYT Medicine"), operates a

Review the Group's business strategies  chain of traditional Chinese medicine consultation counters

for further expansion (all located in its retail shops).
REBTECTE SR ZLEGE - Bt - AEELK
BN ETEZME - ZFEMENRE —HEHHR
EQﬁE °

The Group has also entered into a franchise agreement
with WYT Medicine pursuant to which the Group operates
its own franchised Wai Yuen Tong retail shop. There is a
traditional Chinese medicine consultation counter in the

shop.

Annual Report 2003
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REERERFMML2EKE

Business objectives as
stated in the Prospectus

ZERH :

Elderly care services:

- RIEIMIE D 52,0001E+5 i %
EA N
Establish and/or acquire not less than

2,000 beds in licensed elderly homes

* ¥ B #® B B
BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

EREKER XKEE228 (X
)

Actual business progress/change in
business objectives (if any)

AEE-BERNETS LYESEENSEBR RERS
NEREERHE - AT BEARESEH - WAYESEEMR
FEREHSHRBIERH -

The Group has been actively identifying suitable and
promising investment opportunity and strategic partner in
the market. However, up to the date of this report, no
specific opportunity or strategic partner was identified for

investment.

o BEFEERR - RERTSZLERTSERBERA
mRE - HREWT:

The Board is in the view that the operating and marketing
environment of the elderly home market is becoming more

difficult, due to the following reasons:

<<%&

s

(1) BHRBEREETERREZROIERRE A
RBEBIZRERNEERSD
Due to the more stringent regulations currently
imposed, the operations of elderly care services have

become very costly;

—RE=F5H
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

RERRERMEZXKE BEREFER EBEEZ28 (W
= =)

Business objectives as Actual business progress/change in
stated in the Prospectus business objectives (if any)

2) HRPEREZZZRMABRS BT ERRSE
HFREBEHF—EHTE K
Owing to competition from elderly homes in the
Mainland China, the elderly care services market in

Hong Kong has been dropping; and

3) ERREXBEEREAKBZER mMEBAER
AARERAEMASRELBREARRAMBZXKH
|l AEBEZROEB -BRLTEBRS -
The development will tie up the resources (financial

and administrative) of the Group which may

otherwise be applied to other more promising and
profitable business of the Group, for example, the
Group’s core business — healthcare and dental

services.

AEEDEEZER  SHEEBRZEAKER -
The Group has temporarily suspended this project until

promising business opportunity arises.

)
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Business objectives as
stated in the Prospectus

PRBHBZHR :

Child care services development:

- R HUIE 2 RO 2 AT 5T
Commence feasibility study for the
acquisition of child care centres

- mesEREke

Identify suitable acquisition opportunities

* ¥ B #® B B
BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

ERXBER XBEEZE25H (W
)

Actual business progress/change in
business objectives (if any)

REE-BHIEEBHRMBTE - UEENTS LS
BEZRERS NERBUERMHE - AW BEARSHE
HMARDEIEMNFEREMSIRBIERE - EXNKHE
PEIIFHEXRTR  AEECEEZAR SHER
Bz E#ER -

The Group has been reviewing the child care market in
Hong Kong and actively searching for suitable investment
opportunity and strategic partner in the market. However,
as at the date of this report, no specific opportunity or
strategic partner was identified for investment. Given the
economic downturn and the decreasing birth rate in recent
years, the Group has temporarily suspended this project

until promising business opportunity arises.

—RE=F5H
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

#EF?EH"E&F)? L2 K5 B

Business objectives as
stated in the Prospectus

REEM :

Health care products:

- R RIBERERRIABEE TS ER
Review and expand the product
portfolio to broaden the customer base

- HHB CHERBE®D
Introduce on-line sale of healthcare
products

- MR ERBER AR QR ([ERE
1) 82 T 80% 4 55 2 A 1T 1
Review the feasibility of acquiring the
remaining 80% interest in Health Matrix
International Limited (“Health Matrix")

- ERUMREBESEZATHERE
Explore the feasibility of geographical
expansion into Taiwan

- REBE-—FHRERE
Further expand the geographical

coverage into the PRC

Annual Report 2003

ERERER E£KEEZ228 (W
=)

Actual business progress/change in
business objectives (if any)

MREMMEEME @ &A% EREEFPMERLEEE
oo WHEREARE %KE%%E/E&EE;%L‘M&E' BRI

In respect of product portfolio, the Group continuously
monitors the demand and consumption preference of its
customers and assess the need to source new/improved

products to meet the customers’ changing needs.

ERHERELRETHEZRARE  ~EEZEEAR
BEMRIMELDHERE BEFFHRBENTIHETL,H
BB RE - DA@H&EZ’S%IEEE%H’EHjE%EE °
Owing to the adverse sentiment towards internet and e-
commerce, the Group has temporarily suspended the set-
up of its on-line distribution channel for healthcare products.
The Directors will re-assess the consumers’ behaviour on
on-line purchasing in the future so as to determine when

the Group will re-activate the project.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Business objectives as
stated in the Prospectus

* ¥ B #® B B
BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

EREKER XKEE228 (X
)

Actual business progress/change in
business objectives (if any)

REEDFHERBERZMBRMNN - REERBFRE
ReRB  AEBERRRBRKBEBRTOWERTE R
AEETRITE - ASESEYERERBR KRR - I
ENAERBEREBEZAIITIE

The Group has reviewed the financial performance and
position of Health Matrix and is in the view that, given the
current performance of Health Matrix, an acquisition of the
remaining 80% interests in Health Matrix is not beneficial
to the Group at this moment. The Group will closely monitor
the performance of Health Matrix and re-consider the

feasibility of acquisition in a later stage.

AEBRERKTEZRERMMISETHRE - ENXHS
HEHR O MEEEBRBKETE  AEER /BRI
EEQEMS BEZRK - PEMSMs - ARERE
ETTHBMR  UEREAEE MR LE 2 REER (L
HARFERMAREEFMAL BT BEXZIEE -

The Group has studied the health food market in the
Greater China. Given the keen market competition and the
general downturn of the Taiwan economy, the Group is in
the view that it is not the right time to enter into the
Taiwan market. In respect of the PRC market, the Group is
currently conducting market researches so as to ascertain
the market acceptance to the Group's potential healthcare
products, especially the health foods and nutrition

supplements.
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

FIBRERE Use of proceeds

WTRBEZTT=F=A=1+—B1H The actual use of proceeds from the new shares issued for
o AARE_FETTHE+ ARBRPIAEIR  listing on GEM of the Exchange in October 2000 (the
R EMERITHRD ([EXARBRI)ESR  IPO") for the period up to 31st March, 2003 as compared
sz A ERASE  RIBRERMELZ 1o the proposed amount set out in the Prospectus are as

EEesos: follows:

BEEeE EREHE
Proposed Actual
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
I B A R L Additional medical centres 8,000 8,000
iR A B D Additional integrated medical centre 4,000 4,000
WL EDFR Additional dental practices 2,000 2,000

BEFZFR Electronic clinic and healthcare
RIEERBIERE information database 2,000 2,000
EHfh R Traditional Chinese medicine development 5,000 5,000
2 % Bk 5 Elderly care services 10,000 -
RS R Child care services development 2,000 -

33,000 21,000

D 9 2 Annual Report 2003
v

mﬁ‘ Town Health International Holdings Company Limited

L



M EE

ARBZEBAEREBRE_TE=F=A=+—
HIEHM - SnBR BRI - AEEZEEE
HEBFEZESBOKE ERRAMABEAMERE
Ratin ke AEEZAEER - Bt - LR 2
[ERESHIERERAMBRMAEREREES
ZEBEAED - [ERSBITTERAEEE
EY_EE=F-A=t+-BULZEBEBERS
EHRAZ2EES -

R AR R Kk B 2 B (8 HOBR E
REBRIT -

AEBBAEEREERAFABRSAREH
ZHBRRAZFERE -

* ¥ B #® B B
BUSINESS OBJECTIVES REVIEW

Note:

The Company's business plan covers a period up to 31st March,
2003. As mentioned in the Prospectus, it is the intention of the
Group to finance the business plan partly by proceeds from the
IPO and partly by the Group's internal resources. For this reason,
the “Actual” amount shown above is in relation to those part of
the business plan which were budgeted to be financed by the
IPO proceeds. The "Actual” amounts do not represent the total
funds spent by the Group to achieve the Actual Business Progress
up to 31st March, 2003.

The unutilized proceeds from the IPO are currently placed

as deposits in banks in Hong Kong.
The Group does not at this moment have any intention to

alter the plan for the use of the unutilized proceeds raised

in the IPO.
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AEE BEASEEARKREE 2R HE
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Executive Directors

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, aged 39, is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company as well as the founder of
the Group. Dr. Cho graduated from the University of Hong
Kong and holds the qualifications of MBBS (HK), FHKCFP,
FRACGP, DCH (London), DCH (RCP&SI) and DCH
(Glasgow). He is also the president and founder of Town
Health Children’s Club and the President of Hong Kong
Shatin Industries and Commerce Association Limited. Dr.
Cho founded the Group in December 1989 and now is
responsible for directing the Group’s overall business and
development strategies. He is a son of Mr. Cho Kam Luk,
an Executive Director of the Company. Dr. Cho is also a
director of Origin Limited, the substantial shareholder of

the Company.

Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet, aged 36, is the Director of
Medical Services of the Group. He graduated from the
University of Hong Kong and holds the qualifications of
MBBS (HK), MRCGP, DCH (London) and DFM (CUHK). He
joined the Group in 1994 and is responsible for the strategic
development of information technology-related operation
of the Group. Dr. Fung is also a director of Origin Limited,

the substantial shareholder of the Company.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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EEEEAEE  BFU+ R BAETEH
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BER -RRAEETFBELZEL  YRER
BEREZRT  c BRENB/ARRZHER
FEFRBERARARZES -

Mr. Cho Kam Luk, aged 69, is the father of Dr. Cho Kwai
Chee. He has over forty years' experience in interior design
and decoration. Over the past thirteen years, he is
responsible for engaging contractors, supervising
administrative staff on constructing the premises of the
medical centers and integrated medical centers of the Group
and the overall design and decoration of such premises.
He has been working with the Group since December 1989.
He is a director of Hong Kong Industrial Districts Industry
and Commerce Associations Limited, a treasurer of Hong
Kong Shatin Industries and Commerce Association Limited,
a consultant to Shatin JPC Farm and the Vice-chairman of
Shatin Livelihood Concern Group. He is also a director of
Origin Limited, the substantial shareholder of the Company
and a director of Health Matrix International Limited, an
associated company of the Company.

Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin, aged 41, is a qualified
associate engineer in building services. He has been
involved in the field of construction, renovation and business
management in the past 15 years and has been holding
various senior executive positions in a number of
corporations. Mr. Cho was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 24th July, 2001 is responsible
for the business development of the Company. Mr. Cho is
the brother of Dr. Cho Kwai Chee and a son of Mr. Cho
Kam Luk. Mr. Cho is also a director of Health Matrix
International Limited, an associated company of the

Company.
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Independent Non-executive
Directors

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu, aged 50, has engaged in the catering
industry for almost 30 years. He has also involved in
entertainment, property and investment project in the recent
years. Mr. Chan is the founding chairman of Hong Kong
Shatin Industries & Commerce Association Limited and
currently an executive member of the Committee of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Qingxin County, Guangdong Province. He is also an honorary
president and director of Shatin Sports Association Limited
since 1992 and the chairman of the Shatin District Junior
Police Call since 1996. He was a Hong Kong District Affairs
Advisor to Xinhua News Agency for the period from January
1995 to June 1997. Mr. Chan was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and the chairman of
the audit committee of the Company both on 30th July,
2002.

Mr. Wai Kwok Hung, J.p, aged 49, is the chairman of
the Shatin District Council. Mr. Wai is a councillor of the
Shatin District Council since 1988. He was also the
chairman of the Culture, Sports and Community
Development Committee of the Shatin Provisional District
Board for the period from 1998 to 1999. He is currently a
vice-president of Shatin Sports Association Limited, a
director of the board of governors of Tin Sum Valley Public
School and Management Committee Member of Helen
Liang Memorial Secondary School. Mr. Wai was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director and a member
of the audit committee of the Company both on 30th July,

2002.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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SREEE Senior management

BWEKE  ARAZHEHEE - A8 E  Mr. Mak Yau Hing, aged 34, is the financial controller,

REERGHE  RASEASEZYHEE  the company secretary and the qualified accountant of the

STEBMMEER BEALERENEBEIT  Company who is responsible for the financial and

RE - HHENBELBA - £ES5r - HAS  accounting management and secretarial affairs of the Group.

BEHAMAE 28 RABAFHAREFAM  Mr. Mak graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic

NRBZEREER - University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, the United Kingdom. Mr. Mak joined
the Group in July 1999.
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The directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended

31st March, 2003.

Principal activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40

to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March,
2003 are set out in the consolidated income statement on

page 60 of the annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend

and propose that the profit for the year be retained.

Property, plant and equipment

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately HK$22,416,000 for the
expansion of the Group's business. Details of these and
other movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the

financial statements.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Principal subsidiaries and
associates

In May 2002, the Group entered into agreement with Wai
Yuen Tong Medicine Holdings Limited (“WYT Holdings”,
formerly Dailywin Group Limited) to dispose of its 24%
interest in Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Company Limited ("WYT
Medicine”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$52,911,000. The consideration was satisfied by the
issue of 3,291,111,334 new shares of HK$0.01 each and
HK$20,000,000 convertible notes in WYT Holdings. WYT
Medicine is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is principally engaged in the business
of manufacturing, processing and retailing of traditional
Chinese medicine. Following the disposal of WYT Medicine,
the Group had 23.9% interest in WYT Holdings and reduced
to 13% after the placement of shares in WYT Holdings to
third parties.

In January 2003, the Group converted HK$8,000,000
convertible notes into shares in WYT Holdings and increased
its interest in WYT Holdings to 17.8%.

In February 2003, the Group entered into agreement with
Wang On Group Limited (“Wang On") to dispose of its
49.88% interest in Luxembourg Medicine Company Limited
("Luxembourg”) at a consideration of approximately
HK$69,987,000. The consideration was satisfied by the
transfer of 2,120,833,061 WYT Holdings ordinary shares at
HK$0.033 each held by Wang On. Luxembourg is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and is principally engaged in the sale of cough syrup under

"

the brand name "Madame Pearl's” and other healthcare

products.
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BELZHEERERAR (IEwEER]) - 3
Ben Genomics Hong Kong Limited ([3 Ben
Genomics]) + Celltech Limited ([ Celltech]) &
Plasmagene Biosciences Limited ([Plasmagene
Biosciences] ) T2 S EEH - AEEH D
H 3 Ben Genomics & Celltechz # & &=
28.75%  WLAHE R EHER « 3 Ben
Genomics & Celltech®& B 2 # #= # B
Plasmagene BiosciencesZ 28.75%#& & ©

ARBZEBWNBRAINAERZ = EHZ
NAM-ZBE=F=A=+—B2=HE " »
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Principal subsidiaries and
associates (continved)

Upon the completion of the above transactions, the Group
held in aggregate 4,711,944,395 shares in WYT Holdings
representing approximately 29.84% equity interest in WYT
Holdings.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation of Plasmagene Limited
(Plasmagene), 3 Ben Genomics Hong Kong Limited (“3
Ben Genomics"), Celltech Limited ("Celltech”) and
Limited

Biosciences”), the Group reduced its interest in 3 Ben

Plasmagene Biosciences ("Plasmagene
Genomics and Celltech to 28.75%, and exchanged each
of its interests in Plasmagene, 3 Ben Genomics and Celltech

for 28.75% in Plasmagene Biosciences.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and the
Group's principal associates at 31st March, 2003 are set in
notes 40 and 18 to the financial statements respectively.

Convertible notes

During the year, the Group acquired convertible notes of
HK$20,000,000 through the disposal of its interest in WYT
Medicine. The Group converted HK$8,000,000 convertible
notes into 800,000,000 shares of WYT Holdings at HK$0.01
each and disposed of HK$12,000,000 convertible notes to
Wang On at cash consideration.

The Company also redeemed the convertible notes issued
to Topson Profits Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited, on maturity
during the year.

Details of the convertible notes at 31st March, 2003 are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Share capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial

statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of
shares

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company'’s shares.

Share options

Other than the Company's share options schemes, details
of which are set out in note 28 to the financial statements,
at no time during the year was the Company, fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and none of the directors or the chief executive,
or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had

exercised any such rights.

No share options were granted to the Company’s directors

during the year.
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Directors and directors’ service
contracts

The directors of the Company during the year and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Dr. Cho Kwai Chee

Mr. Cho Kam Luk

Mr. Cho Kwai Yee, Kevin
Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet
Dr. Chan Wing Lok, Brian  (retired on 24th July, 2002)

Mr. Siu Kam Chau (resigned on 6th January, 2003)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Chan Kin Fung, Phil (retired on 24th July, 2002)
Mr. Ip Tak Chuen, Edmond (resigned on 5th August, 2002)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chan Kam Chiu (appointed on 30th July, 2002)
Mr. Wai Kwok Hung (appointed on 30th July, 2002)
Mr. Choy Kan Pui (resigned on 25th July, 2002)

Dr. Lui Chi Keung, Charles (resigned on 26th July, 2002)

In accordance with Article 99 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Chan Kam Chiu and Mr. Wai Kwok Hung
will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general

meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company's Articles
of Association, Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet also retire from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being

eligible, offer himself for re-election.

!lqpy Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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EEREE2REEHN (&£ Directors and directors’ service
contracts (continued)

FEMTESC ST MHAMEIN  Each of the independent non-executive directors has been
MELA -+ HBER - EBHE appointed for a term of two years expiring on 29th July,
ERWEARRZ AR MBS EMmMERBE 2004, subject to retirement by rotation and other related

g
B
<t

MR . provisions as stipulated in the articles of association of the

Company.

ZEEHMEEAQRSETRMNE AT None of the directors has a service contract with the
MASEE TR —FARMNEE CEERMER Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
SN FIAEIE 2 RIEE K » determinable by the Group within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and chief executives’
interests in securities

At 31st March, 2003, the interests of the directors, chief
executive and their respective associates in the securities

of the Company and its associated corporation (within the

BHEREN])) 2BFRHEBLERENEAR
AR BB RS E2RRETE ZER
A KREDTEBAEIDITER AT ([H
AT BIZER (TRIZER]) FH EmAAIE
5408559 BME AR RBMZ A Eem

meaning of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests)
Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance"”)), as recorded in the
register maintained pursuant to Section 29 of the SDI
Ordinance or which are required, pursuant to rules 5.40 to

5.59 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities in the

R Growth Enterprises Market ("GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(1) #&247E (1) The Company

RO EE
Number of shares held

A #E 5= E ¥ $ NEIER HftEz
Personal Family  Corporate Other
#®E Name interests interests interests interests
EETEE Dr. Cho Kwai Chee - - 180,475,846 -

(Note)

(Bt &E)
BaekEsas Mr. Cho Kam Luk - - - Note
B 5
HIREE Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet - - - Note
P =
Bf3E : Origin Limited# & & #£180,475,846% %  Note: An aggregate of 180,475,846 shares were held by Origin

Limited,
Company's shares in issue as at 31st March, 2003. The

AN
B IEAATR —EE—E=-H=+—A representing approximately 20.06% of the
b

Z BT £920.06% ° o _ ST
entire issued share capital of Origin Limited is owned as

o ,—t—‘ B paNy=1 F
B E R ﬁi 7 Al Origin to approximately 90.50% by Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, 0.71%
Limited % #f & 847 £ A 4790.50% ~ 0.71% by Mr. Cho Kam Luk and 1.499% by Dr. Fung Yiu Tong,
$2.1.49% o Bennet.
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1)
H"H Name
B BELA Mr. Cho Kam Luk

Mi#= © True Destination Incorporated & & #
5,600,000 f&fh - (hEREBEBRER _TZT =
FZA=T—HEBTHMHE% Eol
% 4 ¥ A True Destination Incorporated#J

72.50%E % ©

FEEZBEALHMEEANR R S HE AR
EEZ AR K EE 5 A

o

B

RIFAER S| SR EEIN  RAFREHL
FAREM R - 8T A AN R B R
B (HPARBREETANB AR/
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Directors’ and chief executives’
interests in securities (continved)

(2) Health Matrix International Limited (“Health
Matrix”), an associated corporation (within the

meaning of the SDI Ordinance) of the Company

R ERBBRROEE
Number of shares held in Health Matrix
B A # = E X5 AFER HtbER
Personal Family  Corporate Other
interests interests

interests interests

5,600,000 Note
P &£

Note: An aggregate of 5,600,000 shares were held by True

Destination Incorporated, representing 80% of the shares
of Health Matrix in issue as at 31st March, 2003. True
Destination Incorporated is owned as to approximately

72.50% by Mr. Cho Kam Luk.

Other than disclosed above, as at 31st March, 2003, none
of the directors, the chief executive of the Company, nor
their respective associates had any interest in any equity
or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated

corporations.

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions”,
there were no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.
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FERRE Substantial shareholders

RZZTEE=F=F=+—H  BEHEZEME As at 31st March, 2003, the register of substantial
EHEI6(MEREFEZ EZR/REELME  shareholders required to be maintained under Section 16(1)
R UTALTHEARARDEITRA10%E, of the SDI Ordinance show that the following person had
P £ an interest of 10% or more in the issued share capital of

the Company:

PR iR

K7 EE Aot

Number of Percentage

REERE Name of shareholder shares held holding
Origin Limited (B &E) Origin Limited (Note) 180,475,846 20.06%
@ BfitsE: Origin Limited¥ B & #£180,475,846/% 1k Note: An aggregate of 180,475,846 shares were held by Origin
D ERRRRZTEE=F=A=+—H Limited, representing approximately 20.06% of the
ZEETRMNA2006% BEETEHE & Company's shares in issue as at 31st March, 2003. The
©FEEE R REE LD R ¥ B Origin entire issued share capital of Origin Limited is owned as
Limited % #F B B 1TAX A £790.50% - 0.7 1% to approximately 90.50% by Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, 0.71%

K 1.49% - by Mr. Cho Kam Luk and 1.49% by Dr. Fung Yiu Tong,

Bennet.

B FYFREES)  ARTWAMER —F  Other than disclosed above, the Company has not been

TE=HF=A=+—08  BEE{EALF D3 notfied of any other interests representing 10% or more

FTREAN10%E A 7 H b kEsS o of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st
March, 2003.
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Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31st March, 2003, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 68% of the Group's
total turnover. The five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 57% of the Group's total
purchases. In addition, the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 55% of the Group's total
turnover while the largest supplier accounted for

approximately 27% of the Group's total purchases.

Included in the five largest customers are Drs. Cho, Chan,
Fung & Associates (the “Partnership”), and two medical
practices operated by Dr. Cho Kwai Chee and Dr. Fung Yiu
Tong, Bennet respectively. The partners of the Partnership
are employee-doctors of the Group. Dr. Cho Kwai Chee
and Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet are the executive directors
of the Company. Details of the transactions are set out in

Note 38 to the financial statements.

Included in the five largest suppliers are WYT Medicine, a

former associate of the Group.

Other than the aforementioned, at no time during the year,
the directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which,
to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of
the Company's share capital) had a beneficial interest in

anyone of the Group's top five customers or suppliers.
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Competing interests

Save as disclosed in the section “Major Customers and
Suppliers”, none of the directors, management shareholders
or controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group

during the year.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares
or debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and none of the directors or their spouses or children
under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the

securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right.

Sponsor’s interests

Pursuant to an agreement dated 5th October, 2000 and a
supplemental agreement dated 24th October, 2001 entered
into between, among others, the Company and First
Shanghai Capital Limited (“First Shanghai”), First Shanghai
has received a fee for acting as the sponsor of the Company
for the period commenced from 18th October, 2000 and
ended on 31st March, 2003.

As at 31st March, 2003, neither First Shanghai nor its
directors or employees or associates (as referred to in
note 3 to Rule 6.35 of the GEM Listing Rules) has any
interests in the shares of the Company, including options

or rights to subscribe for any such shares.

q\l%& Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Connected transactions

The following transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
(the "GEM Listing Rules”) and are required to be disclosed

herein.

0 The Group has granted licences to medical and
dental practices for the use of the name “Town
Health Centre” and provides them with limited scope
services. Of which, a medical practice is carried on
by Dr. Cheng Chor Ho, two dental practices are
owned by Dr. Chik Fu Fai and a dental practice is
owned by Dr. Leung Chi Sang respectively. Dr. Cheng,
Dr. Chik and Dr. Leung were the executive directors
of the Company. Dr. Chik retired from his office of
director on 24th July, 2001 while Dr. Cheng and Dr.
Leung resigned from their offices of director on 24th

October, 2001.

During the year ended 31st March, 2003, the limited
scope licence agreements entered into by each of
Dr. Cheng, Dr. Chik and Dr. Leung and the Group
were terminated. Accordingly, no licence fee income

was charged by the Group.
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BEXS (#)

(i RZZEZZTFWANA - A%EEEE (i) The Group entered into a management services
BRI —TBEERE RS o BRI
Uk - AN 5 B A A R B R BB P
EHBER  THRRIERS - #K
BE&ERAEEX NG AREE RS
B ERIEHUERB ZRE -

Connected transactions (continued)

*H
e

agreement with Health Matrix on 6th April, 2000.
According to this agreement, the Group will provide
to Health Matrix all financial management,
administrative and support services. In consideration
of the provision of these services, Health Matrix will

pay a fixed monthly service fee to the Group.

HEEBRBEBARAR  BokiE W
BIEEE  BRKELBERR TSR
DRI E BB 20% + 58.0% * 5.0%
1.4%K2.00%01 % « EXER/RRNRTFZ
WITES - FEE  REBERKE
B RARBZAMITESE - WE 55
R-_ZEE—F+A-+WHE  —ZEZ
—E+A-tHAR-ZET_F+A
T+ BAREAHERESTEZRE

Health Matrix is beneficially owned as to 20% by
the Company, 58.0% by Mr. Cho Kam Luk, 5.0% by
Dr. Chik Fu Fai, 1.49% by Dr. Chan Wing Lok, Brian
and 2.0% by Dr. Leung Chi Sang. Mr. Cho is an
executive director of the Company. Dr. Chik, Dr.
Leung and Dr. Chan were the executive directors of

the Company and had retired or resigned from their

respective offices on 24th July, 2001, 24th October,
2001 and 24th July, 2002 respectively.

Annual Report 2003

During the year ended 31st March, 2003, Health
Matrix was inactive and therefore no service fees
income were charged by the Group against Health

Matrix.

!lqpy Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Connected transactions (continued)

(iii)

(v)

The Group entered into a distribution agreement
with Health Matrix. According to the agreement, the
Group acts as a distributor of and receives

commission from Health Matrix.

For the year ended 31st March, 2003, the Group
did not involve in any distribution work of Health
Matrix and thus receive no commission income from
Health Matrix (2002: Nil).

In March 2000, the Group entered into licence and
management services agreements with Dr. Cho Kwai
Chee and Dr. Fung Yiu Tong, Bennet. Under these
agreements, the Group grants to Dr. Cho and Dr.
Fung the non-exclusive licence to use the name
"Town Health Centre” and provide to them a

comprehensive range of services.

Dr. Cho is the Chairman and the substantial
shareholder of the Company. Dr. Fung is an executive

director of the Company.

For the year ended 31st March, 2003, the licence
and management fee income charged by the Group
to Dr. Cho amounted to HK$240,000 and
approximately HK$1,006,000 respectively, and the
licence and management fee income charged by
the Group to Dr. Fung amounted to HK$180,000
and approximately HK$1,422,000 respectively.
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Connected transactions (continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
confirmed that the above transactions had been conducted
in ordinary and usual course of business of the Company,
on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties, and in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the

Company as a whole.

Board practice and procedures

For the year ended 31st March, 2003, the Company was
in compliance with the Board Practices and Procedures as
set out in rules 5.28 to 5.39 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.23
to 5.27 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review the Company's annual
report and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports
and to provide advice and comments thereon to the Board
of Directors. The audit committee will also be responsible
for reviewing and supervising the Group's financial reporting

and internal control procedures.

The audit committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kam Chiu and Mr.
Wai Kwok Hung. Mr. Chau Kam Chiu is the chairman of the
Committee. The Committee has met three times during

the year.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Auditors

During the year, Messrs. Arthur Andersen & Co., who acted
as auditors of the Company for the past three years,
resigned and Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers were
appointed as auditors of the Company. On 13th March,
2003, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers resigned as auditors
of the Company and Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
were appointed as auditors of the Company. A resolution
will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors

of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cho Kwai Chee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24th June, 2003
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Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TOWN HEALTH INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 60 to
138 which have been prepared in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of
directors and auditors

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair
view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies

are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those statements and to report our

opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,

of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors
in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently

applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
as at 31st March, 2003 and of the profit and cash flows of
the Group for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24th June, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

2003 2002
Bt 5% BT & TT
Notes HKS$ HK$
BER Turnover 4 123,878,249 100,029,884
5 & A AR Cost of sales (74,955,055) (56,527,735)
E 7 Gross profit 48,923,194 43,502,149
H 48 & A Other operating income 5 6,700,590 1,177,252
THR Administrative expenses (70,415,896) (40,066,599)
H & &5 Other operating expenses 6 (8,443,527) -
& (F518) a7l (Loss) profit from operations 7 (23,235,639) 4,612,802
Bl & B N Finance costs 8 (2,863,564) (4,987,272)
N N gy Gain on disposal of associates 9 44,404,878 -
FEAL B & R Bl 4R Share of results of associates (522,628) 9,391,132
B SH U RE B 2 2 A Amortisation of goodwill arising
Frisr & on acquisitions of associates (7.003,015) (3,289,244)
W B Bt = 8 A Impairment loss recognised
s EZE®R in respect of goodwill arising
REBE on acquisitions of associates (1,691,818) -
JE W BEk = A A Allowance for amounts due
RIS from associates (3,400,000) -
B 75 B v A Profit before taxation 5,688,214 5,727,418
18 Taxation 12 (804,580) (3,554,731)
Kt D AR RS 2% F Profit before minority interests 4,883,634 2,172,687
DEIR R = Minority interests (142,628) (143,509)
F & Net profit for the year 4,741,006 2,029,178
R AT Earnings per share
— AR REE — Basic and diluted 13 0.55 cents 0.4 cents

Annual Report 2003
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R=TT=£=g=+-8
At 31st March, 2003

2003 2002
B 7 BT 78 TC
Notes HK$ HK$
ERBEE Non-current assets
Mm% - WERZE Property, plant and equipment 14 24,750,916 9,529,174
M AE Intangible assets 15 5,690,644 8,336,385
[k Goodwill 16 29,514,225 32,813,021
i l/NC] o ey Interests in associates 18 144,633,659 118,468,009
REBEHFZERE Investments in securities 19 249,001 5,829,677
HETIEZS Deposit for decoration work - 6,000,000
204,838,445 180,976,266
mBEE Current assets
rE Inventories 20 12,983,422 10,228,670
JEE U5 BR 3K K EL {th & K 5K I8 Trade and other receivables 21 30,132,853 17,752,982
FEW B B E A FA Amounts due from related parties 22 5,652,150 1,634,242
THH T IE Tax recoverable 1,203,403 2,881,784
BB RITER Pledged bank deposits 40,000,000 -
& RIRTT 4 A Bank balances and cash 28,581,288 49,347,279
118,553,116 81,844,957
mEEE Current liabilities
JE {5 BR 30 K L b B {~f 3K 3B Trade and other payables 23 8,941,109 9,703,299
FERTBE A A Amounts due to minority
DB R FRIA shareholders of a subsidiary 24 943,677 391,510
RITEE Bank borrowings
— —FAEH — due within one year 25 56,421,050 2,575,807
Al AR R % Convertible notes 26 - 37,701,973
& 1A Taxation payable - 83,197
66,305,836 50,455,786
mEBEEFE Net current assets 52,247,280 31,389,171
BEERARBER Total assets less current liabilities 257,085,725 212,365,437
—ET=FF8
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

R-ZZEZ=F=A=+—8
At 31st March, 2003

2003 2002
Bt 5 B TT & T
Notes HK$ HK$

FRBEME Non-current liability

RITEE Bank borrowings

—F1& 5 H — due after one year 25 2,135,322 3,264,193
DHRRE = Minority interests 68,906 175,225
254,881,497 208,926,019

EXRKf#E Capital and reserves
N Share capital 27 89,968,200 69,100,000
EfE Reserves 164,913,297 139,826,019
254,881,497 208,926,019

FEORI3BAZLHMBHRRREHEFEN _-F
T=FRA-tHAERKENELHT
IATRREFEHRE -

EET
Cho Kwai Chee
EFE

Director

Annual Report 2003

The financial statements on pages 60 to 138 were approved

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24th

June, 2003 and are signed on its behalf by:

ELME
Cho Kam Luk
o

Director
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EFBEE
KU B AR 2
PR B 4 1 7 BOR

RBEE

JFE Uit B 75 B2 EL At & WK
& Ui P /B8 2 B 3R 0R
BEHEMRITER
Be MRITHER

REBEE

P& 1<F B 75 % EL At B {5 35K
RITIEE

- —FRIH
AR IR

RBEE (BE) FE

REER
REBAEE

FRBEE
RITIEE
— —F&RIH

ERK e
P A
{1

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries
Amounts due from associates

Current assets

8 Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances

Current liabilities
8 Trade and other payables
Bank borrowings

— due within one year
Convertible notes

Net current assets (liabilities)

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liability
Bank borrowings
— due after one year

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

B &

Notes

17
18

21
17

23

25
26

25

27
29

E E &8 B %
BALANCE SHEET

R=TT=£=g=+-8

At 31st March, 2003

2003 2002

BT BT

HK$ HK$
218,775,455 214,924,763
206,241 74,641
218,981,696 214,999,404
331,208 339,601
12,354,395 =
40,000,000 =
2,412,822 12,114,571
55,098,425 12,454,172
7,289 59,403
52,339,936 2,508,000
- 37,701,973
52,347,225 40,269,376
2,751,200 (27,815,204)
221,732,896 187,184,200
- 2,492,000
221,732,896 184,692,200
89,968,200 69,100,000
131,764,696 115,592,200
221,732,896 184,692,200
—EE=F5H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-BP=F=A=t-ALFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2003

BRA BOEE RBRARE [REEA
Share Share Capital  Retained mEt
capital  premium reserve profits Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
(K D)
(Note)
RZFZE—FMA—H At st April, 2001 40,000,000 32,878,632 10,032,822 32,050,283 114,961,737
BT Issue of new shares 29,100,000 65,880,000 - - 94,980,000
Bp E1TR X Share issue expenses - (3,044,896) = - (3,044,896)
FR A Net profit for the year - - - 2,029,178 2,029,178
RZEE_F At 31st March,
=B=+—8H 2002 69,100,000 95,713,736 10,032,822 34,079,461 208,926,019
BT Issue of new shares 20,868,200 22,982,660 - - 43,850,860
RO ETRE Share issue expenses - (2,636,388) - - (2,636,388)
ER A Net profit for the year - - - 4741006 4,741,006
R-_ET=F At 31st March,
=A=+—H 2003 89,968,200 116,060,008 10,032,822 38,820,467 254,881,497
Mick: AEEZBRAGEDERNAREITZERE  Note: Capital reserve of the Group represents the difference

A% 1 18 350,0007% 7T B2 Town Health (BVI)
Limited (3B BIERR ST T FM A #TT
ZEEEARMA D M EZHEAR) Z
fi% 7K TE {E 49 10,383,000/ 7L 2 =58 °

between the nominal value of HK$350,000 of the ordinary
share issued by the Company and the nominal value of
the share capital of approximately HK$10,383,000 of Town
Health (BVI) Limited, a subsidiary acquired through an
exchange of shares pursuant to the group reorganisation

in April 2000.

Annual Report 2003
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CONSOLIDATED CASH

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

2003 2002
BT BT
HK$ HK$
RERK OPERATING ACTIVITIES
PR M D BOR R Profit before taxation and
¥ 7 Al Y A minority interests 5,688,214 5,727,418
FLUATIE B fEH # % : Adjustments for:
NN Interest income (880,277) (921,709)
A B Interest expenses 2,863,564 4,987,272
REIFLEMIEEBE Dividend income from
Z R BWA unlisted investments (40,500) (3,000)
BEREVEE Amortisation of intangible assets 876,360 202,215
BVEEZDHER Impairment loss recognised
BB & in respect of intangible assets 1,769,381 -
55 W B BT B A A Amortisation of goodwill arising
ARRTED ﬁﬁ on acquisitions of subsidiaries,
Fﬁ Pﬁ@ medical and dental practices 3,122,067 1,576,389
1 E% WJ% Impairment loss recognised
)3277 B in respect of goodwill arising on
ﬁ?éﬁ%%ZEﬁ&% acquisitions of subsidiaries, medical
ﬁﬁ)@ﬂé and dental practices 2,163,530 -
M - BB &&# 2 Depreciation and amortisation
8 K o of property, plant and equipment 5,900,870 3,483,656
HEWME BB R Loss on disposal of property,
Rz EE plant and equipment 1,618,632 120,004
FEW I & 1 Al Allowance for amounts
RIEE A due from an investee 452,031 23,878
BHFEREZEHER Impairment loss recognised
WIE B R in respect of investments in securities 618,029 137,500
HEFEHEE Loss on disposal of investments
Z 18 in securities 4,510,616 -
L EHE A A 2 e  Gain on disposal of associates (44,404,878) -
FEAE B & R R EE Share of results of associates 522,628 (9,391,132)
3l /N Amortisation of goodwill arising
FETEES on acquisitions of associates 7,003,015 3,289,244
JE Wi Bt & 1 A Allowance for amounts
IE B due from associates 3,400,000 -
W g B & R R PTIS Impairment loss recognised
BEZE®ER in respect of goodwill arising on
BB 1R acquisitions of associates 1,691,818 -
—ER=F%H
R EBEBERABRLZA
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B &

Notes

Kt & EE S EH 2 Operating cash (outflow) inflow
KR ORE) A before working capital changes

TR Increase in inventories

FEURBR X R B UL (Increase) decrease in trade
FRIE (3 hn) w and other receivables

FEU B REE A 5KIE  (Increase) decrease in amounts
(3% n) due from related parties

FENBRR R EMEN  (Decrease) increase in trade
RIA ORt4>) 150 and other payables

rmEER (RA) Cash (used in) from
EEZHS operating activities
RE(BEH) BB FBH Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid)

B R Interest paid
weE KT A NET CASH USED IN
HEFE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REFXK INVESTING ACTIVITIES
A E A A Acquisition of a subsidiary 30

AL R A= Purchase of interests in associates
JE W Bt % R B FRIEHE 0 Increase in amounts due from associates
BAME  BFE Purchase of property, plant

B and equipment

BARTLEE Purchase of intangible assets
BATENRITEZA  Purchase of interests in medical

s and dental practices

BABLKRE Purchase of investments in securities
HEIEZRS Deposit for decoration work

i 5 B & A &) BT /3 53X I8 Proceeds from disposal of associates
R RA/NET ) Dividend received from associates

I ETIRE Dividend received from
HEKRE unlisted investments
2 M F B Interest received
HEWE  BER Proceeds from disposal of property,
RAEFT 1S IR plant and equipment
HERERTFEZ  Proceeds from disposal of medical
FFr 1% 5k 18 and dental practices 31
RENFAERE Refund of deposit for initial assessment
e ke of investment opportunities
REEBREAZ NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ReFaE ACTIVITIES

Annual Report 2003

2003 2002
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
(3.124,900) 9,231,735
(2.662,754) (7,041,087)
(12,229,600) 169,043
(3.994,235) 769,055
(793,416) 5,110,509
(22,804,905) 8,239,255
1,110,184 (8,157,456)
(2,863,564) (447,799)
(24,558,285) (366,000)
(6,072,650)  (15,439,604)
(20,701,347)  (30,245,923)
(7.714,862) (1,846,842)
(16,416,342) (5,052,725)
- (8,538,600)
- (13,970,769)
= (463,300)
- (6,000,000)
15,159,868 -
6,524,528 1,585,958
40,500 3,000
880,277 921,709
105,146 28,109
3,455,085 -
= 4,394,000
(24,739,797)  (74,624,987)

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

2003 2002
BT & TT
HK$ HK$
Rl & FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EHEIRIRITFEHIE M  Increase in pledge bank deposits (40,000,000) -
fE [0 o] 32 % 4R Redemption of convertible notes (37,701,973) -
HE MR ER Proceeds from disposal of
FT15 508 convertible note 12,000,000 =
BT P15 8 Proceeds from issue of shares 43,850,860 94,980,000
METRHE R Expenses paid in connection
ZFX with the issue of shares (2,636,388) (3,044,896)
MiMEE New borrowings raised 12,914,893 5,000,000
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (46,457)  (12,000,000)
M~ Rl D BUR R Advance from minority shareholders
B of a subsidiary 303,220 391,510
BE (GEA)E4A>  NET CASH (USED IN) FROM @
WEFH FINANCING ACTIVITIES (11,315,845) 85,326,614
ReERREEE (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
HEB (R4 & hn CASH EQUIVALENTS (60,613,927) 10,335,627
FHNzEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
REZEEER AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 49,347,279 39,011,652
FRZBEESRESE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Z£HEEH AT END OF YEAR (11,266,648) 49,347,279
HEREELEEEE ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE OF
R DM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITHEFRRE Bank balances and cash 28,581,288 49,347,279
RITEX Bank overdraft (39,847,936) =
(11,266,648) 49,347,279
—EE=FFH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

1. —RER
AR EREHEAMKLIAZRE
BRAR - ARAEIBRMEBTEHER
SHBERAR ([BRAT]) 8 R E

.

M o

AR —EREERAR - HEE
(NN S 9 p = E
40 °

2. am% kBT EE

EREE  AEEFERIRAATHE
S AERM BT EHER
(F@Ef:‘éi%ﬁﬂ‘lj) o PR IL F T IE K
REFTSHEHEIEHRERER
ZENRABRES RIMAEDE D
R OMEAUEFRERLEITEHE
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O
Annual Report 2003

General

The Company is incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
and its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange").

The Company is an investment holding company.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out

in note 40.

Adoption of new and revised
Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the
first time, a number of new and revised Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP(s)") issued
by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. The
adoption of these new and revised SSAPs has
resulted in a change in the format of presentation
of the cash flow statement and the inclusion of the
statement of changes in equity, and the adoption of
the following new and revised accounting policies.
The adoption of these new and revised accounting
policies has had no material effect on the results
for the current or prior accounting periods.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been
required. Further details of those new and revised

SSAPs are as follows:

<<
s
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RERnEX

EREEAR  AEERASHELGE
A1 155 (RERT) [RERER] - R
East B ERSE 155 (KERD - &
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RICERBERRE (WER) - 7
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BEEEF

ERFER  AEERXNSTERE
AIE3455 [EBEA] - HPSIAREE
B (BREEARENEE) <5t ER
8 - AR ARER 2 BEBHFTRNK
BAEE - MR E S EBLERIF34
HHUMBEHRRLBEMNEARE -

% W xR M OE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

Adoption of new and revised
Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (continued)

Cash flow statements

In the current year, the Group had adopted SSAP
15 (Revised) “Cash Flow Statements”. Under SSAP
15 (Revised), cash flows are classified under three
headings — operating, investing and financing, rather
than the previous five headings. Interest paid, interest
and dividend received, which were previously
presented under a separate heading, are classified
as operating and investing cash flows, as appropriate.
Cash flows arising from taxes on income are
classified as operating activities, unless they can be
separately identified with investing or financing

activities.

Employee benefits

In the current year, the Group had adopted SSAP
34 "Employee Benefits”, which introduces
measurement rules for employee benefits, including
retirement benefit plans. Because the Group's
participates only in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes, the adoption of SSAP 34 has not

had any material effect on the financial statements.

—EE=F5H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003
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Significant accounting

policies

The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention as modified for the
valuation of investments in securities, and in
accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting

policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its

subsidiaries made up to 31st March each year.

The results of subsidiaries and associates acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate or
medical and dental practices at the date of

acquisition.

<<
s
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is capitalised and amortised on a straight-
line basis over its useful economic life. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition of an associate is included
within the carrying amount of the associate. Goodwiill
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries or medical
and dental practices is presented separately in the

balance sheet.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company's balance sheet at cost less any identified

impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The consolidated income statement includes the
Group's share of the post-acquisition results of its
associates for the year. In the consolidated balance
sheet, interests in associates are stated at the
Group's share of the net assets of the associates
plus the goodwill on acquisition, less any identified

impairment loss.

Revenue recognition
Management and administrative service fee income
in relation to provision of healthcare services is

recognised when services are rendered.

—ET=F5H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003
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Significant accounting
POIiCiES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Licence fee income is recognised with reference to

the terms of the relevant agreements.

Dental consultation income is recognised when the

related services are rendered.

Sales of healthcare and pharmaceutical products are
recognised when goods are delivered and title has

passed.

Profit guarantee income is recognised when the
Group's entitlement has been established with

reference to the terms of the relevant agreements.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the

rates applicable.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment

have been established.

Other consultancy fee income is recognised when

the related services rendered.

Ee
Rcae
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and amortisation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation and amortisation is provided to write
off the cost of the assets over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method, at the following

rates per annum:

Land Over the term
of the lease

Buildings 5%

Leasehold Over the term
improvements of the lease

Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicle 20%

Tools and equipment 20 - 33'/.%

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or
retirement of an asset is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

the income statement.

—EE=F5H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003
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3. FEEHHEX® 3. Significant accounting

POIiCiES (continued)
Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the costs of acquisition
of (i) an exclusive right to produce and sell certain
health products in the People's Republic of China
(the "Production and Sale Right"); and (ii) an
exclusive right to operate certain number of franchise
shops in Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
under the name of “Wai Yuen Tong" for a term of

five years (the “Franchise Right”).

Intangible assets are stated at cost less amortisation
and any identified impairment loss. The cost in
relation to the acquisition of Production and Sale
Right and the Franchise Right is amortised on
straight-line basis over the period of ten years and

five years respectively.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-

date basis and are initially measured at cost.

Investment securities, which are securities held for
an identified long-term strategic purpose, are
measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as
reduced by any impairment loss that is other than

temporary.

e
1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

Significant accounting
policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first out method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs to

be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised

for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_ZZ=F#=A=1+—-BItEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2003

3. FEEHHEX® 3. Significant accounting
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POIiCiES (continued)
Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for
the year as adjusted for items which are non-
assessable or disallowed. Timing differences arise
from the recognition for tax purposes of certain items
of income and expense in a different accounting
period from that in which they are recognised in
the financial statements. The tax effect of timing
differences, computed using the liability method, is
recognised as deferred taxation in the financial
statements to the extent that it is probable that a
liability or an asset will crystallise in the foreseeable

future.

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis

over the relevant leases term.

Retirement benefits schemes

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

are charged as an expenses as they fall due.

Ee
Rcae

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

4., EBEXBERI>EEH 4.

Turnover and segment
information
BEEDIEAE= DR R ERRIE
FEZEE LHHIMT

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net
amounts received and receivable from third parties

and is summarised as follows:

2003 2002
BT &I
HKS$ HK$

REEER Provision of healthcare
B2 R & and dental services 99,536,055 100,029,884

HEBBE N Sales of healthcare

B B and pharmaceutical products 24,342,194 =
123,878,249 100,029,884

REEME  AEEERAREBELE

For management purposes, the Group is currently

% - REBERTBERBERES organised into two major operating divisions —
ERREDERD provision of healthcare and dental services and sales
of healthcare and pharmaceutical products.
e RMEEKR — MALABERT *  Provision of — provision of management
= R % ERMEEE R healthcare and administrative services
AR R % M [ R and dental to private medical and
fEBR L& E services dental practitioners,
ZAEREER licensing of the name “Town
SEBERZ2TH Health Centre” and
ZF o operations of the Group's
own dental practices.
L ELLL g Y .
BE R EBZERERAQA W
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HE_RT=F=A=+-HBLFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

4. BEHERDSEER @

E3E

L3
PEZE
FAEEERX

HBE MR
RUBERELT
nEEEL
BEDAE
(34

BB AR
i
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TURNOVER

RESULTS

Segment results

Unallocated corporate
EXpEnses

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of
associates

Share of results of
associates

Amortisation of goodwill
arising on acquisitions
of associates

Allowance for amounts
due from associates

Impairment loss
recognised in respect
of goodwil arising on
acquisitions of
associates

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit before minority
interests
Minority interests

Net profit for the year

RUBRRTERE

Provision of
healthcare and
dental services
2002

BT
HKS
(W)
(note)
(mz3)
(restated)

100,029,884

7654047

4. Turnover and segment

information (continued)

« Sales of -
healthcare and
pharmaceutical
products

RERRRENERAE

Sales of
healthcare and
pharmaceutical

roducts

2002
AT
HK$

sales of healthcare and
pharmaceutical products
including traditional Chinese

medicine.

Eif

2002
A
HK$

o

Total

2002
A
HK$

100,029,884

754,047

(3,041,245)
(4987272)

9,391,132

(3289244

5727418
(3554,731)

2,172,687
(143,509)

2,029.178

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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EEBERIDEER @
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PEAE
RBEARZER
KIREE

AX3H
0% BERiRkZ
fERES

Bega
HELA:
EERFE
JHHE
a8

BEEY

a8
1258
e

- BVRE
- WEREAR
BER
Ef

fEEE
- #5RE

ASSETS

Segment assets
Interests in associates
Unallocated assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabiliies
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilties

QOTHER INFORMATION
Capital expenditure
Depreciation and
amortisation of
property, plant
and equipment
Amortisation of
gooduwill arising on
acquisitions of
subsidiaries, medical
and dental practices
Amortisation of
intangble asset
Impairment loss
recognised
in respect of:
- intangible assets
- goodil arising
on acquisitions
of subsidiaries,
medical and
dental practice
- Investments in
securities

REBRRTRER

Provision of
healthcare and

%

= M

Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_FT=F=A=+-HILEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

4. Turnover and segment
information (continued)

HEBRRENEREE
Sales of
healthcare and
pharmaceutical
dental services products
2002 2002
AT AT
HK$ HK$
()
(note)
(#E5)

(restated)

74,089,019

4534914

5892725

5,483,656

1,576,389

202,215

137500

af @t
Elimination Total
2002 2002
B B
HKS HKS
- 74,089,019
118,468,009

70,264,195

262,821,223

4534914
49,360,290

53,895,204

5892,725

5,483,656

1,576,389

202215

137500

—EE=F5H

B e EBRERAERLRIA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

4. EXBERIBER =

ARAKEZXEBHETELE ¥
WEEFIRWEE D2 D EEF -

CERBRZRERBRL B
EENEEACEBLE  IRR
EHZ2IRBURERBZEER
TTERBRTS - oF B8 BR 7% B & B AR 7%
FERHEAZBLAREZFRL
B3 - ERAFEA—GHERR
REBERITBRE - At » L&
HFEEHET -
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4.

Turnover and segment
information (continued)

No geographical segment information is presented
because the business activities of the Group are

conducted in Hong Kong

Note: During the year ended 31st March, 2003, the
directors reconsidered the grouping of business
segments in light of current economic conditions
and are of the opinion that the management and
administrative services, dental consultation services
and corporate services, which were previously
presented as separate operating division, shall be
grouped together as provision of healthcare and
dental services in current year as the provision of
these services are subject to similar risks and
returns. The comparative amounts have been

restated accordingly.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

5. Other operating income

Interest income from:
— Bank deposits
— Associates
— Other
Dividend income from unlisted
investments
Income from disposal of
convertible note exercise rights
Profit guarantee income from
medical and dental practices
Other consultancy fee income

Sundry income

6. Other operating expenses

Impairment loss recognised
in respect of:
— intangible assets
— goodwill arising on acquisitions
of subsidiaries, medical and
dental practices
Loss on disposal of investments

in securities

2003 2002
B BT
HK$ HK$
487,159 548,639
- 216,577
393,118 156,493
40,500 3,000
475,000 =
4,200,148 =
= 252,543
1,104,665 =
6,700,590 1,177,252
2003 2002
BT BT
HK$ HK$
1,769,381 =
2,163,530 =
4,510,616 =
8,443,527 =
—gg=4¢%

B BB E

ol |
=

J
e

B A B 2 F

)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

7. RE(BR) RN 7.

(Loss) Profit from operations

2003 2002
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
i (B18) B ME KB (Loss) profit from operations has been
THEBEFAE - arrived at after charging:
8 T A Staff costs
—E=8< (ftzE10) — Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) 7,860,742 5,004,900
—HME TRA — Other staff costs 50,910,496 52,682,622
—Hfh 8 TRKER — Other staff's retirement benefits
5T 8t K scheme contributions 1,241,061 1,235,000
60,012,299 58,922,522
1% E5 R B Auditors’ remuneration 480,000 700,000
ME  BEEREZ Depreciation and amortisation of
3T & T B 5 property, plant and equipment 5,900,870 3,483,656
BEmEVEE Amortisation of intangible assets
(FIVEFT B R ) (included in administrative expenses) 876,360 202,215
BHWEBEHEBAR - Amortisation of goodwill arising on
AERTEZM acquisitions of subsidiaries,
s & medical and dental practices
(FIEITELRA ) (included in administrative expenses) 3,122,067 1,576,389
HEMZE BE K Loss on disposal of property,
HiE 2 EE plant and equipment 1,618,632 120,004
BEHEEEZ Impairment loss on investments
R (B B 18 in securities 618,029 137,500

Annual Report 2003
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BE XA

B % ) Fx Mt &
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

8. Finance costs

2003 2002
BT o
HK$ HK$
LATEBZHE : Interest on:

—AREFAERH — Bank borrowings wholly repayable
BEZRITEE within five years 449,939 447,799
—RITEX — Bank overdraft 662,473 —
— AR B & — Convertible note 1,751,152 4,539,473
2,863,564 4,987,272

HEBE ATzl &
EARBEDELEERNKE NG T E S
A R QA2 24%E %5 RN EHR R
REBER AR A A]4949.880%0 % - KB
2 Bl % 52,911,000% T K& #
69,987,000/ T °

9. Gain on disposal of associates

The amounts represent the gain on disposal of the

Group’s entire 24% interest in Wai Yuen Tong

Medicine Company Limited and approximately

49.88% interest in Luxembourg Medicine Company

Limited at the consideration of approximately

HK$52,911,000 and HK$69,987,000 respectively.

—EE=F5H
4
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

10. EEWEREEME 10. Directors’ emoluments and
employees’ emoluments

FANENARREST M LB The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to
N directors of the Company during the year are as
follows:
2003 2002
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
EFHRE Directors' fees:

—-HITES — Executive 6,000 6,000

— T B — Non-executive and
FNITES independent non-executive 240,000 12,000
246,000 18,000

HITES 2 MBI % : Other emoluments of executive directors:

—EARFH& - HMh - Basic salaries, other allowances
R R BV &= and benefits in kind 4,436,436 4,283,846
— RIFIEL — Performance bonus 3,130,306 643,054
— R KAE A 5T & — Retirement benefits scheme
K contributions 48,000 60,000
7,614,742 4,986,900
ESens Total directors’ emoluments 7,860,742 5,004,900
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

10. EEHME RIEEBE = 10. Directors’ emoluments and
employees’ emoluments

(continued)
FR AEEVERAZEEXNHE During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
TER DA I AR 2 228 s BE R 2 Group to the directors as an inducement to join or
1B - W& EE N F AR E T A upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
G e of office. None of the directors has waived any

emoluments during the year.

REFHEARMEBESINM 2 EETM An analysis of directors’ emoluments by number of
0T directors and emolument range is as follows:
2003 2002
E=E=gA EE¥A
Number of Number of
directors directors
HITES Executive directors
— #& % 1,000,000/ 7T — Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 11
— 1,000,001 7T 2 — HK$1,000,001 to
1,500,000/ 7T HK$ 1,500,000 1 2
— 1,500,001 8 L E — HK$1,500,001 to
2,000,0007% 7T HK$2,000,000 1 =
—3,500,001 B TE - HK$3,500,001 to
4,000,0007% 7T HK$4,000,000 1 -
FEMIT B L Non-executive and independent
FHTES non-executive directors
— 4 % 1,000,000/ 7T — Nil to HK$1,000,000 6 4
12 17
_ ALY @
T EEEEEERER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

10. EEME REEM € » 10. Directors’ emoluments and
employees’ emoluments

(continued)
BERIRITES RIERITES RBLIHF Details of emoluments of individual executive and
HITEZE2MEeFBOT - non-executive and independent non-executive

directors are set out as below:

2003 2002

BT BT

HKS$ HK$

HITEEA Executive director A 3,840,932 1,452,000
MITEEB Executive director B 1,610,894 999,601
MITERC Executive director C 1,217,000 1,102,833
HITEED Executive director D 945,916 943,013
HITESE Executive director E N/A 489,453
HITESEF Executive director F 3,000 3,000
MITEZEG Executive director G 3,000 3,000
HITESFH Executive director H N/A _
WITESI Executive director | N/A -
HITE SR Executive director J N/A -
HITESK Executive director K N/A =
HITESL Executive director L N/A =
HITEEM Executive director M N/A -
FEHMITEEFA Non-executive director A = 3,000
FEHMITEEB Non-executive director B = 3,000
B IEHITESRA Independent non-executive director A 130,000 3,000
B IEHMITESB Independent non-executive director B 50,000 3,000
B IEHITESC Independent non-executive director C 30,000 N/A
B IERITESD Independent non-executive director D 30,000 N/A
7,860,742 5,004,900

Annual Report 2003
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HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

EEME 11. Employees’ emoluments

ENfMeLBEALEESFMAL
hHARE(CEE-F: —8R)R
ARBZHITES  HMESEHRN £
XHEE10- e RBEART =% (=
TR _F:WR)RSFMALOT

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals included two (2002: one) executive
director(s) of the Company, whose emoluments are
included in note 10 above. The aggregate
emoluments of the remaining three (2002: four)

highest paid individuals are as follows:

2003 2002

B JT BT

HK$ HK$

EARF e REMER Salaries and other allowances 2,851,000 3,852,000
FRIBIEA Performance bonus 5,330,053 4,882,323
IR KR T 5 S K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 36,000 48,000
8,217,053 8,782,323

—TEE=ZFFRK

ERERBRZRERAZLA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZ

TZ=FZA=+t-ALFE

For the year ended 31st March, 2003

1. EEME »

BT=ZZ (2T

1,500,001 T &
2,000,000/ J©
2,000,001/ L&
2,500,000/ 7T
3,500,001 8 TE
4,000,000/ J©
4,500,001 8 TE
5,000,000 7T

11. Employees’ emoluments

—F B RS
MALZBEWT -

HK$1,500,001 to
HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to
HK$2,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to
HK$4,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to
HK$5,000,000

TR AKEILER DR KSFHA
TXNABME - (ERINAKRINARZ

ROKBBZMHE -

Annual Report 2003

(continued)

The emoluments of the remaining three (2002: four)
highest paid individuals were within the following
bands:

2003 2002
EE®E EE#HA
Number of Number of
employees employees
2 2

- 1

- 1

1 —

3 4

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

i 18 12. Taxation
2003 2002
Vi BT
HKS$ HK$
X B The charge comprises:
—AREEEG — Hong Kong Profits Tax attributable
BB NS to the Group 451,000 2,124,355
—# (b S — Share of taxation attributable
UNGIR TR to associates 353,580 1,430,376
804,580 3,554,731

FBENG W T IAF E ERBOE MR

160 (=_FF —F : 16%) 5T & o

AEERARBRAFERAEERL
BERRBREBRTEHREA -

BREAEF
BRAEMNTHIREFE AR 4,741,006
T (ZZFZT=F :2,029,178% ) R F
WE BTRMD 2 MEFHHK
869,641,485k (= T & — & :
519,000,0000%) 5t & o

AEERESRNKTERRLER
TEARRZABERRERERE -
THRREBITEERRO N WEFE
ZEFOHERS °

13.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% (2002:

16%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

The Group and the Company had no significant
unprovided deferred taxation for the year or at the

balance sheet date.

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is
based on the net profit for the year of HK$4,741,006
(2002: HK$2,029,178) and on the weighted average
number of 869,641,485 (2002: 519,000,000)

shares in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share has
not assumed the conversion and exercise of the
Company’s convertible note and share options as
these exercise price were higher than the average

market price for share for both years.

—EE=F5H
ERERBRZRERAZLA
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

14. % - BERR®E 14. Property, plant and equipment
IHREF BENELE HAREE AE  IERRB Bt
Furniture Tools
Land and  Leasehold and Motor and
buildings improvements fixtures vehicle  equipment Total
B BT B B B B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
r& THE GROUP
ﬁﬂi CoST
— 7 7 —E
@F] H At 1st April, 2002 2,484,820 6,878,942 446,641 88,925 5,873,237 15,772,565
NE Additions - 19,521,436 163,242 - 2,131,664 22,416,342
WEKBAR  Acquisition of a subsidiary = 279,152 5,265 = 145,631 430,048
HE Disposals - (2358622)  (22,908) - (444135) (2,825665)
R-ZEE=F
=A=1+—H8 At 3lst March, 2003 2484820 24,320,908 592,240 88,925 8,306,397 35,793,290

REREH DEPRECIATION AND

AMORTISATION
R-FF_%

—R—H At Tst January, 2002 20,339 3527446 171,307 88,925 2,435,374 6,243,391
FEEXH Charge for the year 89,440  3,965749 104,802 - 1740879 5,900,870
& 3 Eliminated on disposals - (883,239) (8,878) - (209,770)  (1,101,887)
R-FF=

=ZA=1+—8 At3lst March, 2003 109,779 6,609,956 267231 88,925 3,966,483 11,042,374
RERE NET BOOK VALUES
RZZT=F

ZA=1+—H At3lst March, 2003 2,575,041 17,710,952 325,009 = 4339914 24,750,916
W TT-F

A=+—H At 31st March, 2002 2,464,481 3,351,496 275,334 = 3,437,863 9,529,174

R_BEE=ZFR_ZEE_F=ZF=+ At 31st March, 2003 and 2002, the land and
—B AREBEEFEBZIHEETFTH buildings of the Group are held under medium term
NHHBOFE - leases in Hong Kong.
R-ZEZE=F=A=+—H8 ' &5£H At 31st March, 2003, the Group has pledged the
BRI REFEL1,173,0008 7T (= land and buildings having a net book value of
TEF 1,217,000 7T) 2 T K approximately HK$1,173,000 (2002: HK$1,217,000)
BF  EREAEEER—RRITEE to secure general bank facilities granted to the Group.
e
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

7 > -
15. BEEE 15. Intangible assets
RERBEEERN BEEAR &t
Production
and Franchise
Sale Right Right Total
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$
PN THE GROUP
B COST
RZZEZ-FWA-AK At 1st April, 2002 and
R_EE=F=A=1+—H at 31st March, 2003 8,088,600 450,000 8,538,600
BHERTE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
R-ZZTE-_FEWA—H At st April, 2002 202,215 - 202,215
FEXH Charge for the year 808,860 67,500 876,360
ERAREER Impairment loss
recognised 1,769,381 - 1,769,381
R-ZEE=F=A=+—H At 31st March, 2003 2,780,456 67,500 2,847,956
REFE NET BOOK VALUES
R-_ZEE=F=fA=+—H At 31st March, 2003 5,308,144 382,500 5,690,644
R-_ZEE_F=A=+—H At 31st March, 2002 7,886,385 450,000 8,336,385
U B B 2 R A DA i B R A The cost in relation to the acquisition of Production
ZRAD BB+ F R B FEE - and Sale Right and the Franchise Right is amortised

over the period of ten years and five years
respectively.

FRN - ERBAIZKEBERBR  ARF During the year, the directors of the Company
EEENAEEZREREERMNZ reviewed the carrying value of the Group's
BRTEIME o UL %% 2 A Y Bl F 88 Th EK Production and Sale Right in view of the current
3% BERXRFHE 2 hEFBRIRER economic conditions. The recoverable amount of
EETE ° A%1,769,381 BT 2 RIEE these business is determined with reference to the
BLEAMNFERRGES KER A estimated future cash flows using a discount rate of
fx o 3%. Impairment losses of HK$1,769,381 were
identified and charged to the consolidated income
statement.

—EE=F5H
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

s

&

16. B 16. Goodwill
)= PN EERIRDH CEil
Medical
and dental
Subsidiaries practices Total
BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$

r&E THE GROUP
B & COST
R-ZEZE-FWA—H At st April, 2002 11,859,436 22,738,769 34,598,205
WeiE Acquisitions 5,441,886 - 5,441,886
HE Disposals - (3,572,120) (3,572,120)
RZZEZE=F=H=+—H At3Ist March, 2003 17,301,322 19,166,649 36,467,971
BERAE AMORTISATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
R-BE-FMWA—H At st April, 2002 404,819 1,380,365 1,785,184
FEXH Charge for the year 1,154,398 1,967,669 3,122,067
ERRREERE Impairment loss

recognised - 2,163,530 2,163,530
i B 8 Eliminated on disposals - (117,035) (117,035)
RZZZE=F=H=+—H At3Ist March, 2003 1,559,217 5,394,529 6,953,746
RERE NET BOOK VALUES
RZZEZ=F=H=+—H At3Ist March, 2003 15,742,105 13,772,120 29,514,225
RZZZ_F=A=1—H At 31st March, 2002 11,454,617 21,358,404 32,813,021
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HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

16. %%(%) 16. Goodwill (continued)

BERAMEEERY -

RBAEFE  BBRAMTZE_1+F
B -FRN EZEMAHULENEB
RAIRABRITBEBLF 2 AEBESF
B WAETH-_ZTEZ_FMA—H
B EERANAETFEHE - TN
RN E—_TT=F=-A=
+—BIEFE 2 # 8 E H49842,000

FBTT e

ERBRIZEBERR  ARABESN
EHAEECABRTBZ2A2EE
1B o WWEDFT 2 AT U E FREE T ER A 3%
CUHMBREAE A AEReREE
TE o BE2,163,5308 T2 MERIETY
BRI E RRGEE KR AR o

The goodwill is amortised over a period from 5 to

10 years.

In previous years, goodwill was amortised over a
period from 10 to 20 years. During the year, the
directors have re-assessed the useful economic lives
of these subsidiaries and medical and dental
practices and have decided that with effect from
1st April, 2002, goodwill is amortised over a period
from 5 to 10 years. The change in amortisation
period has increased the amortisation charge for
the year ended 31st March, 2003 by approximately
HK$842,000.

The directors of the Company also reviewed the
carrying value of the Group's medical and dental
practices in view of the current economic conditions.
The recoverable amount of these practices is
determined with reference to the estimated future
cash flows using a discount rate of 3%. Impairment
losses of HK$2,163,530 were identified and charged

to the consolidated income statement.
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

17. A B 2 8l 2 # %~ 17. Interests in subsidiaries/

g g NG E amounts due from
subsidiaries
2003 2002
B T BT
HKS$ HKS
El il &) Unlisted shares, at cost 28,537,379 28,537,379
N NGIE S Amounts due from subsidiaries 190,238,076 186,387,384

218,775,455 214,924,763

FE WM B~ Al Fk I8 Amounts due from subsidiaries 12,354,395 -
JE W B )& A /] 5118 190,238,076/ JT The amounts due from subsidiaries of
(ZET =4 : 186,387,38457T) TV & HK$190,238,076 (2002: HK$186,387,384) are
BiR - 2EREEEERY EEFR unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
A BRAREBEREEBRS = repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the
BAANEE  WIIEEREIER - amounts will not be repayable within twelve months

from the balance sheet date and are therefore shown

as non-current.

Br ESCRTat o - UK B R R FRIETY Other than as mentioned above, the amounts due
A 2B RERETERE - from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

are repayable on demand.

FEMBRAANR-ZEZE=F=A=+ Details of principal subsidiaries at 31st March, 2003
—BZFMAERENWEE4L0 - are set out in note 40.
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B % ) Fx Mt &
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE_FT=F=A=+-HILEFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

#E % 18. Interests in associates/
amounts due from associates

AEE

ART

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2002
BT BT
HK$ HK$
BB AR Share of net assets
BEFME: of associates:
-t — Listed - _
— LM — Unlisted 18,170,347 =
WEERs % Aa  Goodwill arising
Frig 2 on acquisition
(B 3F) of associates (Note) 94,995,082 —
113,165,429 —
FEURHEZ AT Amounts due
A from associates 5,302,580 74,641
FEUgBE= A Al Allowance for amounts
FRIB B due from associates = =
5,302,580 74,641
118,468,009 74,641
EmRRHG Market value of
REEH listed shares at the
Z A balance sheet date - -
EE TR S S

B E KR E

Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁu




B % ) Fx Mt &
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

18. REt & N T 2 #E = ~ 18. Interests in associates/

PE W HE & A R R IE (&) amounts due from associates
(continued)

JE W Bk & A Rl R IR B 45 AR 87 12,000 Included in the amounts due from associates are
BIL(ZEZ =4 : 7850008 7L) & amounts of HK$712,000 (2002: HK$785,000) and
164,000 7T (ZZFZ =4 : 163,000 HK$164,000 (2002: HK$163,000) which carried
7B 7T) IR T 35 F 5 Rl 2% F 5 interest at prevailing market rate plus 2% per annum
K20%FE B EFE o A H A RIS and 2% per annum respectively. All the other
BEETF R2ELREETEENRY = amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no
ERE - BEFIBHEREE R R fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of directors,
—FRNER - WIEIREIER o the amounts will not be repayable within one year

from the balance sheet date and are shown as non-

current.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

18. REt & N Tl 2 #E 2 ~ 18. Interests in associates/

P& W Bt & N B FIE () amounts due from associates
(continued)
BiaE : AR 8 AR PTG Note: Goodwill arising on acquisition of associates
rEH
THE GROUP
2003 2002
BT & TT
HKS$ HK$
R A COST
KnEA—H At 1st April 98,614,406 65,221,696
W BE PR 15 Arising on acquisitions 114,826,242 33,392,710
£ B i8S Eliminated on disposals (96,035,670) -
R=A=+—H At 31st March 117,404,978 98,614,406
B XRE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
KA —H At 1st April 3,619,324 330,080
FEIMH Charge for the year 7,003,015 3,289,244
ERREER Impairment loss recognised 1,691,818 -
H 65 RF i BH Eliminated on disposals (7.247,541) -
R=A=+—H At 31st March 5,066,616 3,619,324
fRERE CARRYING AMOUNT
R=A=+—~H At 31st March 112,338,362 94,995,082
WEME A AFMEREENTREES The goodwill arising on acquisitions of associates
TEZEEAIERF R - was amortised over the estimated useful life ranging

from 5 to 20 years.

—EE=F5H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

18. EAH%%

N
i
Bk
AN

FRN - ERBRAIZEERBR - AT
ExPEHNASE  BMERRZERE
B - UL EHE AT 2 P IRE FREE TR
3%z B RGtHE 2 M5t BRE R
EETE ° £%1,691,8188B L2 REE

B AR ERNEAWERAN
B o

AEBZEEZEBRERNAR_TZT=F
—A=+T—HZF@AEHDOT

g2mRY/
DNAER Bt s
Place of
incorporation/
Name of company registration
HERERRA B
Advance Bond Limited Hong Kong
BHFHRRAERAT B8
Bess Dental Services Hong Kong

Limited

o Annual Report 2003

18.

Interests in associates/
amounts due from associates

(continued)

During the year, the directors of the Company
reviewed the carrying value of the Group's associates
in view of the current economic conditions. The
recoverable amount of these associates is
determined with reference to the estimated future
cash flows using a discount rate of 3%. Impairment
losses of HK$1,691,818 were identified and charged

to the consolidated income statement.

Details of the Group's principal associates at 31st

March, 2003 are as follows:

ARERE
BEZERTRA
HEZEG LA
Attributable proportion

TEEH

of nominal value of
issued capital indirectly

held by the Company  Principal activities

49% EERALE-RABDH
Operation of a medical clinic
in Hong Kong
49% RETHDBERBTIHZER

BEA
Provision of dental card services

to dental card holders

<<

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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DNAER

Name of company

MNEESHERAR
Fortune Way Trading Limited

RETRBBEMERA
Health Dental Surgery

Limited

EREBRERAA
Health Matrix International

Limited
ZE2EBRBEERDA

NSA Life Sciences Limited

ERBRAH
Oriental Elite Limited

&

% ow@o& M

i

Notes to the Financial Statements

=
18 (&)

SMAL/
BRI

Place of
incorporation/

registration
Bk

Hong Kong

BA
Hong Kong

BA
Hong Kong

BA
Hong Kong

BA
Hong Kong

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

18. Interests in associates/

amounts due from associates

(continued)

ENNGIN B
BREZERTRA

H{E 2 G LBl
Attributable proportion
of nominal value of
issued capital indirectly

held by the Company

25%

49%

20%

49%

45%

IREHR

Principal activities

ERPEZE
Retailing of traditional

Chinese medicine

REFRDERS
Provision of dental

consultation services

D HEREE R
Distribution of healthcare

products

2 HIREE M
Distribution of healthcare

products

ESSE]
Property holding

—EE=F5H

ERERBRZRERAZLA
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B % ) Fx Mt &
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

REE NANT 2z~ 18. Interests in associates/

FEUL B & N B RRIE () amounts due from associates
(continued)
ENNGIEE
g2mRY/ BEZERTRA
NE A B HEZEHGLS FEXH
Attributable proportion
Place of of nominal value of
incorporation/ issued capital indirectly
Name of company registration held by the Company  Principal activities
Plasmagene Biosciences ReE#S 2847% REBBEDERSE
Limited ( [ Plasmagene Cayman Provision of medical
Biosciences]) * Islands diagnostic services
i ERRERAT BRE 29.84% MEREARMERE -
(T2 k) FRERREREE
FREEZZE UK
BHERHE
Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Bermuda Property investment and
Holdings Limited property holding,
("WYT Holdings") ** assembly of watches
and manufacture of cases,
retail of complete watches
and bags and sales of
pharmaceutical products
REERERL A BE 25% REBEISERY
Union Crown International Hong Kong Provision of medical
Limited diagnostic services
BARRAF BE 250 BRYETE
Smart Leading Limited Hong Kong Retailing of traditional

Chinese medicine
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BEEEERAER AT ([EiEE
Bl z&EEA - ~EEFKEE
MEEEZ45% % - HE3 Ben
Genomics Hong Kong Limited (3
Ben Genomics]) Z 16.25%%# &= &
! £ Celltech Limited ([ Celltech]) =~
2225%% @m © RE DA A
6,153,000/ JT * 292,500/ 7T &
4,450/ 7T ° X Ll R BT -
AEBSFIRHELTHEER - 3 Ben
Genomics & Celltechz 28.75%#&
@ WEREBEBHADHEET
Plasmagene Biosciences * LA B4
Plasmagene BiosciencesZ 28.75%

M2 o

R % 17 K% B % Plasmagene
BiosciencesZ #1 A n  + A& B R
Plasmagene BiosciencesZ # z 2 /3
D ZE28.47% ©

RZTTZZFLH AEELEHR
RALTT =SB A R A A ([T = 4%
M)z 2E24aniEss - REHNE
52,911,000 7c - RETIEAET
B m A 0.01% 1t 2
3,291,111,334 Rz T 42 R 3T
120,000,0007% 7T 2 AT AR Z i S
fif o

AEBEZSTRO01B TEE
1,500,000,0000% iz 7t & % A% A% 15
TREBREE  NUBReEE
12,000,000 7t 2 A #2 i 22 & F ok
ZEEERAR([RE])  WEK
#8,000,000/8 T2 AT AR EE A
& I& ™ {5 0.017% 7t .2 800,000,000

MR 7T = A K AR -

% W xR M OE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

18. Interests in associates/
amounts due from associates

(continued)

*

*%

Pursuant to a group reorganisation of Plasmagene
Limited (“Plasmagene”), the Group acquired a
further 4.5% interest in Plasmagene, disposed of
16.25% interest in 3 Ben Genomics Hong Kong
Limited (“3 Ben Genomics”) and disposed of
22.25% interest in Celltech Limited (“Celltech”)
for a consideration of HK$6,153,000, HK$292,500
and HK$4,450 respectively. Upon the completion
of the aforesaid transactions, the Group holds
28.75% interests in each of Plasmagene, 3 Ben
Genomics and Celltech. These investments were
disposed of to Plasmagene Biosciences in exchange
for 28.75% interest in Plasmagene Biosciences.

The Group's interest in Plasmagene Biosciences
was reduced to 28.47% upon the issue and
allotment of new shares in Plasmagene

Biosciences.

In July 2002, the Group disposed of its entire
249% interest in Wai Yuen Tong Medicine Company
Limited ("WYT Medicine") at a consideration of
approximately HK$52,911,000. The consideration
was satisfied by the issue of 3,291,111,334 new
shares of HK$0.01 each and HK$20,000,000
convertible notes in WYT Holdings.

The Group placed 1,500,000,000 WYT Holdings'
shares at HK$0.01 each to institutional investors,
disposed of HK$12,000,000 convertible notes in
cash to Wang On Group Limited (“Wang On") and
converted HK$8,000,000 convertible notes into
800,000,000 ordinary share of WYT Holdings of
HK$0.01 each.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

. REEE AT 2% 18. Interests in associates/

FEUL B & N B RRIE () amounts due from associates
(continued)

RZZE=F=F AEEE In March 2003, the Group disposed of its
EHEHREREREHRAERA 49.88% interest in Luxembourg Medicine
(TEREBARNEER]) 2 49.880%7H# Company Limited (“Luxembourg”) to Wang
mw T AR RKREBAOAR On at a consideration of approximately
69,987,000/ T - RETIZE HK$69,987,000. The consideration was
P& 0.0338 T # & X KT # satisfied by the transfer to the Group of
2,120,833,06 1 Iz T & 2= B A% 2,120,833,061 WYT Holdings' shares at
93 fF e HK$0.033 each held by Wang On.

RERR ZTHE » AEEF Upon the completion of the above
B&$£4,711,944395 10 & transactions, the Group held in aggregate
AR AR (9 0 iR AL T B AR A 4,711,944,395 shares in WYT Holdings
29.84% M fH #E & ° representing approximately 29.84% equity

interest in WYT Holdings.

BEERA - LB E N EAREEZE In the opinion of the directors, the above associates
BAEEREATE -EZRR & have a significant effect on the results or assets of
P E e N Al 2 BRI S E R E R B the Group. To give details of other associates would,
Rk ° in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.

REBEEBERNAMITETERZ Extracts from the audited financial statements of
BREER URAEEZAIEEHE WYT Holdings, the Group’s major associate, and the
NAMI T E SR ERE %Y audited financial statements of WYT Medicine and
BHRREX W4T - Luxembourg, the Group's former major associates

are set out in note 41.
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B % ) Fx Mt &
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

19. BERE 19. Investments in securities
REE
THE GROUP
2003 2002
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
JEET - KA Unlisted, at cost 1,004,530 5,504,529
W BRERIMERETE  Less: Impairment loss recognised (755,529) (137,500)
249,001 5,367,029
FEW % & A FFIE  Amounts due from investees 475,909 486,526
o FEUIR IS E A A Less: Allowance for amounts
RIA A due from investees (475,909) (23,878)
- 462,648
249,001 5,829,677

[

v
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B % R Ok M =
Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

= -
20. & 20. Inventories
REE
THE GROUP

2003 2002
BT B IT
HKS$ HK$
Y Pharmaceutical supplies 2,884,769 2,810,086
2 BB M Health food 601,230 901,519
5 57 p 2 Traditional Chinese medicine 8,597,509 6,517,065
BEERE Healthcare equipments 605,243 -
TRA @ Dental materials and supplies 294,671 -
12,983,422 10,228,670

MEGFEHEK A - All inventories are stated at cost.

21. EWERFZ R HMEUW S 21. Trade and other receivables

b= |
rEE NN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
BT BT BT o
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
JE W BR 3k Trade receivables
(Mt&Ea) (Note a) 9,287,769 9,106,627 - -
e (Biskb)  Deposits (Note b) 14,566,444 6,062,409 - -
H it fE UK IE  Other receivables
(Mf7Ec) (Note ¢) 6,113,640 2,326,029 166,208 216,684
AR Prepayments 165,000 257,917 165,000 122,917

30,132,853 17,752,982 331,208 339,601
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

21. EWEBR 7 & H 1tb FE L &K

21. Trade and other receivables

18 (#) (continued)
B 5 Notes:
a. REEGTHESERPASATHEZ a. The Group allows its trade customers with an

BO+TBEZFHEEH - REEH
Z MR R AR B AT

average credit period of 60 days to 240 days. The
aged analysis of trade receivables at the balance

sheet date is as follow:

rE
THE GROUP

2003 2002

& T BT

HK$ HK$

0 - 60H 0 — 60 days 3,984,607 3,216,497
61H - 1204 61 — 120 days 2,721,286 2,683,742
1213 - 180H 121 — 180 days 1,254,180 1,879,396
181H - 240H 181 — 240 days 2,677,671 331,036
241H - 360H 241 — 360 days 510,025 688,451
3608 A £ Over 360 days - 781,324
11,147,769 9,580,446
W RIERREE Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (1,860,000) (473,819)
9,287,769 9,106,627

—sE=F4%8%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

21. EIWEER R HEMEULR 21. Trade and other receivables

18 () (continued)

b. ReBREmEERSEAREBET b. Included in deposits are HK$8,000,000 paid in
B & E m B {7 2 8,000,000/ 7T relation to the promotion and advertising of the
ExBEEREZEE 2 Group's healthcare products and HK$2,111,550
2,111,550 7T ° paid for the purchase of computer equipment.

C. HEWRIEBREREABLHZ C. Included in other receivables is HK$4,200,148
st ) AR 78 FE YT K TH 4,200,148 7T (2002: HK$1,018,427) in respect of profit

ZET=F :1,01842787T) ° guarantee receivables from medical practices.

22. EWWEBEALTRE 22. Amounts due from related

parties
FAEREKEZ
rEH ISEE ¢
Maximum amount
outstanding
THE GROUP during
2003 2002 the year
BT BT BT
HKS$ HK$ HK$
Drs. Cho, Chan, Fung Drs. Cho, Chan, Fung &
& Associates (ffi7£a)  Associates (Note a) 5,510,192 1,497,354 5,510,192
Origin Limited (Fff =b) Origin Limited (Note b) 141,958 136,888 141,958
5,652,150 1,634,242
B 5E - Notes:
(a) Drs. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates (a) The partners of Drs. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates
CEBARAEBZRERE - are employee-doctors of the Group.
(b) ARAEFEMRRK o (b) A substantial shareholder of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

23. ERBRERRHEMENT 23. Trade and other payables

5 AEE AR
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
BT BT & TT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
FERTBR 3R (P4 5E) Trade payables (Note) 2,616,477 3,732,172 - —
HipfEFF 3 Other payables 257,028 282,091 7,289 59,403
JEEtE A Accruals 6,067,604 5,689,036 - -
8,941,109 9,703,299 7,289 59,403
B 5E - Note:
REER ZENERRERIITAT : The aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet

date is as follows:

REE
THE GROUP

2003 2002

7 T BT

HK$ HK$

0 - 60H 0 — 60 days 2,134,006 2,184,779
61H - 120H 61 — 120 days 140,022 1,547,393
121H - 180H 121 — 240 days 268,968 =
2408 A k£ Over 240 days 73,481 -
2,616,477 3,732,172

—EE=F5H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

"/

24. BB AR DEBRE
=k
R IE
BHEFEAEER  RERAEREX

R EE -

25. SR1TEE

24. Amounts due to minority
shareholders of a subsidiary

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand.

25. Bank borrowings

&

Ee
e

1

RE PN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
RITERK Bank loans 18,708,436 5,840,000 12,492,000 5,000,000
RITEX Bank overdrafts 39,847,936 - 39,847,936 =
58,556,372 5,840,000 52,339,936 5,000,000
DHHNE - Analysed as:
B A Secured 40,641,479 840,000 - —
42 45 47 Unsecured 17,914,893 5000000 52,339,936 5,000,000
58,556,372 5,840,000 52,339,936 5,000,000
AR THIFH  Repayable as follows:
B
—F R Within one year 56,421,050 2,575,807 52,339,936 2,508,000
—FEMF Between one to
two years 1,438,882 2,559,807 - 2,492,000
MEEREF Between two to
five years 155,058 203,421 - -
REENE Over five years 541,382 500,965 - -
58,556,372 5,840,000 52,339,936 5,000,000
o BIERE  Less: Amount due
Bz within one year
—F QR included under
3 Hi3RI8 current liabilities (56,421,050) (2,575,807) (52,339,936) (2,508,000)
—F 1% 5| 5 Amount due after
FIA one year 2,135,322 3,264,193 - 2,492,000
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25.

26.

WITEE @
R-—BB=£=A=+—0 A&EF
BAEENAAEE Y REERRE
T RIETEBER - BRRTE
BIAEB TSR RS ER L LR
e ST

JRREE

RZZETFALAZ+AH A FHE

AIEX (EB)ERARIZEZEN B
A &l Topson Profits Limited ([Topson/)
A RERE c BEBE - A2FR
—TETFE+TATEHZEEBENRS
M TopsonZ 1T AN & 28 /%3 1,562,500/%8
TZAHRRER -

AREEREZFEAAEER_ZZ
—FtATN\BEZZTTE-_FtA=
+—RB (8% A) 1L EE A ] R E
R E (AT TR E) R &S H (A
BOARABERBRGD - BEARF
MEMR  AIRREBRZBREDH
T _FRAA-Z T+ —HBRAERESE
f%0.571% 7T °

FAIRREBER_TET=_F+tA=*
—HEHE  ARRCDEOABRER
e

% W xR M OE

Notes to the Financial Statements

25.

26.

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

Bank borrowings (continued)

As at 31st March, 2003, the secured bank
borrowings are secured by the bank deposits and
certain land and buildings of the Group. The bank
borrowings bear interest at prevailing market rates
and repayable in accordance with the relevant loan

agreements.

Convertible notes

On 20th September, 2000, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with Topson Profits
Limited (“Topson”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited. Whereby, the
Company issued a convertible note with a principal
amount of HK$31,562,500, to Topson for cash at
face value on 17th October, 2000.

The convertible note or any part thereof is
convertible into the Company’s shares at the
conversion price (subject to adjustments) at the
option of the note holder at any time during the
period commencing from 18th July, 2001 and up to
and including 31st July, 2002. The conversion price
of convertible note is adjusted to HK$0.571 per
share with effect from 21st May, 2002 following

the placements of new shares in the Company.

Upon the maturity of convertible note on 31st July,
2002, the convertible note was redeemed by the

Company.
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003
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27. Share capital

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

Authorised:

Balance at 1st April, 2001 and
31st March, 2002

Increase during the year

At 31st March, 2003

Issued and fully paid:

At 1st April, 2001

Issue of new shares

At 31st March, 2002

Issue of new shares

At 31st March, 2003

B 17 & B BE
Number of

shares Value

S TT

HK$

1,000,000,000 100,000,000

1,000,000,000 100,000,000

2,000,000,000 200,000,000

400,000,000 40,000,000

291,000,000 29,100,000

691,000,000 69,100,000

208,682,000 20,868,200

899,682,000 89,968,200

s
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

27. BZA ) 27. Share capital (continveq)

i) HBEZZEZE-_F=A=+—H (i)  During the year ended 31st March, 2002,
WEEEA - BRREE - #iE the Company issued and allotted
R/HEAREELARER 291,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10
7 RNAGBTREZESRKRE each as a result of private placements of
{50.10/%75,2291,000,000% shares to professional, institutional and/or
BR o FBWT individual investors. Details were as follows:

gk §E! nE BE
Number

of shares Amount Issue price

AT

HK$
—EE-FXATNA 18th June, 2001 34,000,000 3,400,000 0.45
“EE-f+A+_H 12th July, 2001 46,000,000 4,600,000 057
“ER-F1+ATEHA 15th October, 2001 31,000,000 3,100,000 021
ZZT-%+t-A=1H 30th November, 2001 65,000,000 6,500,000 028
“TZ-F—-R+tH 17th January, 2002 115,000,000 11,500,000 0.25

291,000,000 29,100,000

(i) #HEZEZE=F=A=+-—H (i) The movements of the ordinary share capital
t@rz% BAZEMT : for the year ended 31st March, 2003 were

as follows:

J BER-_ZEZ_FLH . Pursuant to resolution passed at the
“tHBERTZRREAE annual general meeting held on 24th
¢ AREg FTBRBZRER July, 2002, the authorised share capital

CHEERBREE of the Company was increased from
O.]O/%E,Z],OO0,000,000 HK$100,000,000 to HK$200,000,000
BRI EER  AAFZ by the creation of an additional
YA %€ B& 78 B3 100,000,000 1,000,000,000 new ordinary shares
78 7L 48 H1 %= 200,000,000 of HK$0.10 each.

BIT °
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

27. B& &) 27. Share capital (continued)

J BRAEERER,HEAR . The Company issued and allotted
BEMABEERD - ARAR 138,200,000 ordinary shares of
BR0.20BTT  BITARES HK$0.10 each at HK$0.20 per share
f&EI{E0.107% 7T 2 138,200,000 as a result of private placements of
I AR o shares to professional, institutional and

/or individual investors.

J HRTEARR 2 ERE & . The Company issued and allotted
NAERFIR023B T » BT R 70,482,000 ordinary shares of
i & KR EEO0.10/8 T 2 HK$0.10 each at HK$0.23 per share
70,482,0000% & A% © as a result of exercise of the

Company's share options.

FAMBEETROEER 2REE All the share issued during the year rank pari passu
BREMBA BZARS#ES - with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.
28. EERfESTE 28. Share option scheme
RATDRR=ZEZEZEFNA=TH The Company’s previous and existing share option
NZETZ_FHAZ+MHBERALA schemes were adopted on 20th September, 2000
((ZEZZTF5TE)) R BERES (the 2000 Scheme"”) and on 24th April, 2002 (the
([T -—F5t&8) r BT EM “2002 Scheme"), respectively, for the primary
EZhEEREBRMERE - purpose of providing incentives to directors and

eligible employees.

Annual Report 2003
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

28. Share option scheme (continved)

Pursuant to the 2000 Scheme, the Company may
grant options to the directors and the employees of
the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the
shares in the Company, subject to a maximum of
10% of the nominal value of the issued share capital.
No share options were granted under the 2000

Scheme.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extra ordinary
general meeting, the Company terminated the 2000
Scheme and adopted the 2002 Scheme, which will
expire on 23rd April, 2011, the Company may grant
options to the eligible persons fall within the
definition prescribed in the 2002 Scheme including
directors, the employees and consultants etc. of the
Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the
shares in the Company for a consideration of HK$1

for each lot of share options granted.

Options granted should be accepted within 21 days
from the offer date. Options granted are exercisable
during the period commencing on the date of grant
and expiring on the date ten years after the date of
grant. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted shall not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time excluding any shares issued upon
the exercise of options granted pursuant to the 2002

Scheme.
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

28. BRESTE @
SRATEENAANEEEET -
ELORERALFABRAEEREE
B2 RMAEELEARD T Tk

HERE Y REE -

/

BRE_ZSTE_FHEATREERALT
B &k 2RO BT ERBBIRE
B _FHEEREIT RO EITR

28. Share option scheme (continued)

The exercise price per share is determined by the
directors of the Company, and shall be at least the
higher of the nominal value of the Company's shares
and the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediate preceding the offer

date.

The total number of shares in respect of which may
be granted to an eligible person under the 2002

Scheme is not permit to exceed 1% of the aggregate

MDHBEZ 1% ° number of shares for the time being issued and
issuable under the 2002 Scheme.
TERBEBERRAABRENRFAZE The following table discloses movements in the
ED Company's share options during the year.
BRESR<RHHA
Number of shares subject to option
R-222% R-2B=%
MA-H ZA=t-H
BRTEE 8 ERRH ERTE A 3
MTESE Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Outstanding
REHAH Exercisable price at during during at
Date of grant period per share 1.4.2002 the year the year 31.3.2003
BT
HKS
RERAL “FFCF “TRCF
EAZtWAE HEAZtME
—F-_F
AA=t=A
Eligible persons  24.5.2002 24.5.2002-23.5.2012 0.23 = 70,482,000  (70,482,000) =

o Annual Report 2003
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28. BRESTE @

FRAEMAMBELBEREZAERA
TR BRERIET

T FRHA - TWHELE
EHEBH) s 2 AR A R T E A
0228 7T °

ERBRETER R 2 AR ARD
WhEFAEHDT :

ETHEZERERE

Number of share options exercised

24,876,000
16,584,000
12,438,000
16,584,000

F R 30 4 i B A AR (B E X et R R
X e

B EXPrEEESN  RMEFEARL
BERAARRES EERBERE -

% W xR M OE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

28. Share option scheme (continved)

Total consideration received during the year from
eligible persons for taking up the options granted is

amounted to HK$9.

The closing price of the Company's shares
immediately before 24th May, 2002, the date of
grant of the options, was HK$0.22.

Details of closing prices of the Company's share
immediately before the date of exercise of the

options were as follows:

RETEAHAZBRHE
Closing price immediately
before date of exercise
T

HK$

0.243
0.250
0.265
0.270

No charge is recognised in the income statement in
respect of the value of options granted during the

year.
Save as disclosed above, no share options were

granted to the directors/employees of the Company

during both years.
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

29. f##& 29. Reserves
% 17 3% /8 BA B REER 8 ot
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
(B 5F)
(Note)
ENA THE COMPANY
R-ZET—F
MA—H At 1st April, 2001 32,878,632 28,179,599 (1,922,912) 59,135,319
BTG Issue of new shares 65,880,000 - - 65,880,000
R E1TF X Share issue expenses (3,044,896) - - (3,044,896)
FEBEFE  Net loss for the year - - (6,378,223)  (6,378,223)
m:%%:i
ZA=1+— At 31st March, 2002 95,713,736 28,179,599 (8,301,135) 115,592,200
BIIH RN Issue of new shares 22,982,660 - - 22,982,660
femE17H X Share issue expenses (2,636,388) - - (2,636,388)
FEBEFE  Net loss for the year - - (4173,776)  (4,173,776)
RZZEZT=F
=HA=+—H At 31st March, 2003 116,060,008 28,179,599  (12,474,911) 131,764,696
HaE : RRRIZBARBRTIEARRRET Note: Contributed surplus of the Company represents
3/ A% [ {5 350,000 7T #2 Town the difference between the nominal value of
Health (BVI) Limited (RIER =T Z HK$350,000 of the ordinary shares issued by the
TENAETZEREHEBERER Company and the net asset value of approximately
RHUWEZHEBAR) 2 BEFE HK$28,530,000 of Town Health (BVI) Limited, a
#928,530,000/ T 2 Z= &8 subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares

pursuant to the group reorganisation in April 2000.

RZZEZE=F=A=+—8 ' KAF As at 31st March, 2003, approximately
ZiEEBE EERFARBRKZEEE) HK$15,705,000 of the Company's reserves
#915,705,000/8 7T A] (2 K T AR R (= (represented by the contributed surplus less
TE_4F : 19,878,000/ JC) ° accumulated losses) were available for distribution

to shareholders (2002: HK$19,878,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

WM B2 A 30. Acquisition of a subsidiary
2003 2002
# 5t 5T
HKS HKS

Friilsg 2 3 & E - Net assets acquired:

Yz - WENRZE Property, plant and equipment 430,048 -
= N A Investment in an associate - 6,579,992
FE Inventories 91,998 -
JE W BR 5k K
H b fE Y FR IR Trade and other receivables 150,271 =
FEW B BE AT IE  Amounts due from related parties 23,673 -
R1TRIB S E B Bank and cash balances 124,900 1,200
FE ST BR R R
H b & < 5K 1B Trade and other payables (31,226) -
FE B 7 18 Taxation payable (34,000) -
DEIRRE R Minority interests - (588)
FEE Net assets 755,664 6,580,604
EES Goodwill 5,441,886 8,860,200
6,197,550 15,440,804
AR : Satisfied by:
BENRERE Cash consideration paid 6,197,550 15,440,804

FUEHT B AR 2 Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash
RekReEE equivalents in connection with
HERAFEDHN © the purchase of a subsidiary:

BENREKE Cash consideration paid 6,197,550 15,440,804
T 4 B SR 1T 45 84 Bank balances and cash acquired

kBRE 124,900 1,200
UL B BT B A ) Net cash outflow in respect

Z IR & H of the purchase of a subsidiary 6,072,650 15,439,604
FRKBZHBRARIHANER 2 & The subsidiary acquired during the year had no
BEAEEFEREFERITEEXR significant contribution to the Group's turnover and
TE o the Group's loss from operations for the year.

—gg=4¢%

%
ERERBRZRERAZLA

e
Ee
R

/




B % ) Fx Mt &
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

HERBRTEZH 31. Disposal of medical and
dental practices

2003 2002
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
PEEZ FEE : Net assets disposed of:
7 Goodwill 3,455,085 -
SN DI Satisfied by:
Tk Cash 3,455,085 -
32. TEHFHRERB 32. Major non-cash transactions
BHE —_ZEE=F=A=1+—HIt&E During the year ended 31st March, 2003, the major
N EB2HRREXZHET : non-cash transactions are as follows:
@ RZZET-_FL+H AEEHH (@) InJuly 2002, the Group disposed of its entire
EERNUTELER 2 2 E24% 24% interest in WYT Medicine to WYT

BaTuTEER KEQ

Holdings at the consideration of approximately

pese
Rocer

G

52,911,000 7T + JhiEBAL T
EERETEREMEOIEIT
2391,111,3340 gt J 34T
20,000,000/ 7T 2 Al 4 IR R &
XAt e

Annual Report 2003

HK$52,911,000 which was satisfied by the
issue of 391,111,334 shares at HK$0.01 each
and issue of convertible notes of

HK$20,000,000 by WYT Holdings.
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2. FEHFBHERZ @

EERA BHRAMBESHENR
T EERZKRERS - WR
ZEE-FEANA BIBED
ENTEERTHAZZHH)
6 32 BT FT $R 2 i 7T 2 45 AR AR
PHEER0.042B LIRS
AFEBEZAUEEEZ - At -
EE2EZFTEEHEMBRE
H (BH) ARARIKRAFME
EEMETHEEEUTE S
Bz AFEME--REEBEM
B AEEREERZUTE
B 24%Em 2 AT EBER
53,000,000 7+ i A EZ {7
BHREMBEITZALTELER
Bz A FEEAFRCONE
7T B 2 W E & %0.042
BITHTEAT6% °

MR AT {B0.0428 T » A&
R 2 gmz R EBERE M
105,300,000/ 7T

% W xR M OE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

32. Major non-cash transactions

(continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the market
price of WYT Holdings" share of HK$0.042
per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 9th July, 2002, being the trading date
immediately before the completion of the
disposal of WYT Medicine was not a reliable
indicator of the fair value of the transaction
because of the fluctuation of the WYT
Holdings' share price due to market volatility.
The directors have therefore arrived at the
fair value of WYT Medicine with reference to
a valuation performed by Vigers Hong Kong
Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers, on a fair market value basis. Based
on this valuation, the fair value of 24%
interest in WYT Medicine at the time of
disposal by the Group was approximately
HK$53,000,000 and the fair value of the WYT
Holdings" shares issued to satisfy part of the
consideration was HK$0.01 per share which
represents a discount of approximately 76%

to the closing price of HK$0.042 per share.

Had the market price of HK$0.042 been
used, the value of the consideration for the
disposal of the WYT Medicine would have
been increased by HK$105,300,000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

32. TEFREXRF @ 32. Major non-cash transactions

(continued)
by RZZEZT=F=H A&5EHH (b)  In March 2003, the Group disposed of its
EHERERBREM 2 49.88% entire 49.88% interest in Luxembourg to
Ean TRARZT  READNAR Wang On at the consideration of

69,987,000 T - REBEIIRE
§%0.0337% 7T (BN AR 15 I HH & 52
KA —_ZEE=F=R_+4h
HX 5 BEMIAMER2WH
B ) B8 &FB X & F ¥
2,120,833,06 1 I i 7T = 15 fx A
DAL e

approximately HK$69,987,000 which was
satisfied by transfer of 2,120,833,061 WYT
Holdings' shares at HK$0.033 each, being
the closing price of the trading date as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 25th March, 2003

prior to completion of the disposal.

0 AEEDHNEERERER - () The Group disposed of 28.75% equity
Ben Genomicsk Celltechz
28.75% % o #E 2 - PARRELR

interests in each of Plasmagene, 3 Ben

Genomics and Celltech in exchange for an

Plasmagene BiosciencesZ [F] &
B 15 42

AEBZER0VET - ¥
8,000,000/ 7T 2 i 7T & 15 AX
ik 18 H # % 800,000,000
f& (7 7T = ¥ B A% 1D

equivalent equity interest in Plasmagene

Biosciences.

The Group converted HK$8,000,000
convertible notes in WYT Holdings into
800,000,000 shares of WYT Holdings at
HK$0.01 each.

33. BRIKERIEH 2 33. Retirement benefits schemes
AEBABBFELAKRESSES
B AT S o By EERAL
B &EESMBE - LAEEARS
TESEE o AEEREELSH
SR A 2 50013 - TR B AlEL

B o payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of

trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant

matched by employees.

O
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33.

34.

BIKRBFEFE @

Rz Rk 2 B A #%4%1,289,000
BT (ZEZE -4 : 1,295,000/7T) J5
EASERFANEMTE ZHRK -

B AR AE
R-_EBETE=F=FA=+—H ' ' K&H
WESERNERNEKE R _F=

A
e

RERIEFOLZEETRE  EH—18
BRI B RRY SRR BB 2 E A
¥& 5 #5,950,00078 T °

AABRNEEB L EERNE RHKIE -

el
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Notes to the Financial Statements

33.

34.

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

Retirement benefits schemes

(continued)

The total cost charged to the income statements of
approximately HK$1,289,000 (2002:
HK$1,295,000) represents contributions payable to

the scheme by the Group during the year.

Capital commitments

As at 31st March, 2003, the Group had no significant
capital commitment. As at 31st March, 2002, the
Group had capital commitment in respect of the
decoration of a new integrated healthcare services
centre contracted for but not provided in the financial
statements amounted to HK$5,950,000.

The Company had no significant capital

commitments at the balance sheet date.
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

EXRMBEOEE 35. Operating lease commitments
AEE
THE GROUP
2003 2002
5% 5T
HKS$ HK$

FAEWELEMLY  Minimum lease payments paid
Z AR & F I8 under operating leases in respect of
properties during the year 14,652,771 13,206,961

REEH  AEERETTREZE At the balance sheet dates, the Group had
FHAOAERTIFHENZ RKE&K commitments for future minimum leases payments
K& %IE under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows:

2003 2002
BT BT
HKS$ HK$
—F R Within one year 11,284,000 9,759,000
BE_EERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 6,011,000 3,561,000
(BEEREMEF)
HFER E Over five years - 2,400,000
17,295,000 15,720,000
EXEHERBNEASERESE T2 Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
FTREEMBEFIEEEMN 2HE © by the Group for certain of its clinics and of full
FriEmEz B RAZEE e F BT premises. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed
FZE=F o for a term ranging term two to three years.
RAFREE BB KNS FEHLNF The Company had no significant operating lease
Z o commitments at the balance sheet date.

O
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36.

37.

Hth & &
BER-_ZTEZT—FSA+=HFILZ
N% R tp e ¢ AN 5 B A RE [R) 2N 5 (& A B

% A a3 Ben GenomicsiE i

T VT REMF S F LA750,000/8
TRE - WAIRHZEEREBBFE
([%FE]) - AES B ERRAL &R
(CHIN

XAEE

RZZEE=F=A=+—8H" =
HWB AR RATHE AR D NERA
28,000,000 L (Z T T = F :
8,000,0007% 7t.) & 7,060,000/ 7t (=
— £ : 7,060,000/ 7T) Z BITE
EREMmA M EREREDFER - B
MEBARKRMNKE ARBRZEER
D Al BELAY 5,423,000 T (ZEET =
F &) & 1,600,0008 L (ZTF =
& : 6,640,0008 L) °

EE
=<
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Notes to the Financial Statements

36.

37.

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

Other commitments

Pursuant to a shareholders' agreement dated 13th
June, 2001, the Group had undertaken to provide
working capital to 3 Ben Genomics, a former
associate of the Group, to the extent of HK$750,000
every year for an initial term of two years with
automatic renewal upon expiry of the agreement
(the “Undertaking”). The amount of the Undertaking
is subject to revision upon approval by the

shareholders.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31st March, 2003, the Company had provided
a corporate guarantee to a financial institution in
respect of the banking facilities granted to a
subsidiary and a former associate to the extent
of HK$8,000,000 (2002: HK$8,000,000) and
HK$7,060,000 (2002: HK$7,060,000) respectively.
The amount of facilities utilised by the subsidiary
and a former associate amount to approximately
HK$5,423,000 (2002: nil) and HK$1,600,000
(2002: HK$6,640,000) respectively.
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

38. BRAEANLIRRZ RLEER

FRAKEEBREANALITZTS

EARS :

FREALESE

Name of related party

Drs. Cho, Chan, Fung &
Associates (Fif 3£ 1) (Note 1)

HEAEBZ A (M5E2)
Five medical practices

(Note 2)

R RITED M (ME3)
Medical and dental practices

(Note 3)

RETEEBBEMBRRA
(B =E4)

Health Dental Surgery Limited
(Note 4)

Annual Report 2003

and balances

38. Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following

significant transactions with related parties:

REME

Nature of transactions

BB RITHRSERA
(Bt £9)
Management and administrative
service fee income (Note 9)
A B YA (P EE9)

Licence fee income (Note 9)

IR R ITBRTS B WA (F3E9)
Management and administrative
service fee income (Note 9)

A& YA (P EE9)

Licence fee income (Note 9)

A& WA (FHEE9)

Licence fee income (Note 9)

A B A (FHEE9)

Licence fee income (Note 9)

2003
BT
HK$

57,817,050

10,390,000

3,856,245

970,000

2002
AT

HK$

63,000,689

10,020,000

5,257,108

850,000

960,000

960,000

Town Health International Holdings Company Limited
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For the year ended 31st March, 2003

38. EHEALTRZ KL 38. Related party transactions

(%) and balances (continued)

2003 2002
FHREALTER REMHE T BT
Name of related party Nature of transactions HK$ HK$

EXREREBRERAR (MES) BERITBRHFEERA (HFE9)

Luxembourg Medicine Management and administrative
Company Limited (Note 5) service fee income (Note 9) 56,516 800,129
B WA
Interest income - 181,236
BERRER HFE9)
Purchase of healthcare products
(Note 9) 65,010 -
HERBIBREERA B (D) ERRITHREEWA (F:E9)
Health Matrix International Management and administrative
Limited (Note 5) services fee income (Note 9) - 840,000
BEREEM HZE10
Purchase of healthcare products
(Note 10) 22,896 869,090
EHARDA ([EH]) HeMx (f&10)
(Mt7ES5) Rental expenses (Note 10) 600,000 600,000
Oriental Elite Limited
("Oriental Elite”) (Note 5)
BEE KL (H5E6) BAmE (M 10)
Mr. Cho Kwai Yee (Note 6) Acquisition of a property (Note 10) - 400,000

[
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BE-_TT=F=A=1+—HILFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

38. EEEALTRZ KL 38. Related party transactions

(&) and balances (continved)
2003 2002

BREALTERE REME BT T
Name of related party Nature of transactions HKS$ HK$
NEERERBER R A BEREES (ME10)

(Mt5E7) Purchase of healthcare products
Kowloon Hearing Services Limited  (Note 10) 2,532,998 -

(Note 7)

LieEEARAE (HEE5) XNEREZER (ME10)
Plasmagene Limited (Note 5) Laboratory fee paid (Note 10) 449,180 -

Specially for you International XfMEME (M 10)
Development Limited Consultancy fee paid (Note 10) 322,000 -
(Kt 5£8) (Note 8)

T EERARRA G R BEESRRECIE)
H 82 A (fE5) Purchase of traditional Chinese
WYT Holdings and medicines (Note 11) 4,805,677 4,638,692
its subsidiaries (Note 5) XNERE (ME11)
Management fee paid (Note 11) 87,392 -
XIHEEE (MHE11)
Promotional fee paid (Note 11) 62,255 -

I BR AT # AR AR A B A (Bt EE12)
Convertible note interest income

received (Note 12) 393,118 -

Annual Report 2003
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8. EBEALIXRZ R
(&)
i

@) Drs. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates
ZEBARAEEZEESR

2 LhRABEZAHEEETFRLEREIRE
REL (RERARRZHNTES
RAGEz=%REBE)EEFR

rE -

(3) FAEBRRTBRZIHEEZBALESR
RRTEBE (REG/BRTES)
BEERKEE -MAHIR-_ZZ—F
TAZTHBARBE -

(4)  Health Dental Surgery LimitedF
BEEE(BR_TET—F+A=
THHBERTER) B EK

(5) AEEZEBEDREAEEDQT o

(6) ARFAHITESE -

7) ARANBRRAEFEFZAA

8 ARANBRAZLBEREAR
ETW%@ET%$%’E%ZQD

9 WBERZH2EREGHZIERE
BE -

B % ) Fx Mt &
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-_TT=5=A=+-HItFE
For the year ended 31st March, 2003

38. Related party transactions
and balances (continued)

Notes:

(1) The partners of Drs. Cho, Chan, Fung & Associates

are employee-doctors of the Group.

@) The five medical practices are owned and operated
by Dr. Cho Kwai Chee and Dr. Fung Yiu Tong,
Bennet, who are executive directors of the
Company and three employee-doctors of the

Group.

3) The medical and dental practices are owned and
operated by Dr. Cheng Chor Ho and Dr. Leung Chi
Sang, who were executive directors. Both of them

were resigned on 24th October, 2001.

(4) Health Dental Surgery Limited is owned and
operated by Dr. Chik Fu Kai, who was retired as
executive director on 24th July, 2001.

(5) The Group's associate/former associate.

(6) An executive director of the Company.

) A company owned by the directors of the

Company's subsidiaries.
(8) A minority shareholder of the Company’s subsidiary
and a company owned by directors of the

Company's subsidiary.

9) These transactions were determined with reference

to the terms of the relevant agreements.
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38.

39.

Related party transactions
and balances (continued)

(10) These transactions were entered at terms
determined and agreed by the relevant parties.
(11)  These transactions were entered in accordance with
the terms of the relevant franchise agreement.
(12) Interest is calculated at 3.8% per annum.

During the year ended 31st March, 2002, the Group
acquired a 45% equity interest in Oriental Elite, a
company in which Dr. Cho Kwai Chee, an executive

director of the Company, is a director.

Details of balance with related parties as at the
balance sheet date are set out in the consolidated

balance sheet and in notes 18, 22 and 24.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other
significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the

end of the year.

Subsequent events

As announced on 7th April, 2003, the Company

proposed the followings:

(@) the nominal value of each issued ordinary
share of the Company will be reduced from
HK$0.10 per share to HK$0.01 per share by
the cancellation of HK$0.09 of the capital
paid up thereon;

<<
s
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39. HEHBEE »w 39. Subsequent events (continueq)
(b) BEFEARBMBEEBRE (b)  all of the authorised but unissued share
TR capital of the Company will be cancelled;
() HEREBREECOVETZA (c)  the authorised share capital of the Company
BEBMERR  ARAZE will be increased to the original authorised
ERAGEMERE 25T K share capital of HK$200,000,000 by the
ZX200,000,000/ 7T : creation of requisite number of new ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each;

(d) Fratifz B BEITRMBERR (d)  the amount of the paid up capital of the
KEEBAREERER  mZ issued share so cancelled will first be credited
ERARBRBARRE 2] to accumulated losses account and the
o IRFERE balance of such credit to be credited to a

distributable reserve of the Company.

PR ZFAEHENRARAEC Details of the aforesaid proposal is set out in the
EE=—FNAZTRBREZRE - Company's circular dated 25th April, 2003.
FHREBRDRBERN _ZET=FHA= The aforesaid proposals were approved pursuant to
T=AERTZRRFIAG LBEBZ shareholder resolutions passed at the extraordinary
IRERR BB E - general meeting on 23rd May, 2003.
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40. T ENRBLH

NAER

Name of company

Town Health (BVI) Limited

Town Health Sourcing

Limited

Town Health Trademark

Limited

Annual Report 2003

”

HMERL/
ERERER
Place of
incorporation/
kind of

legal entity

EBRAEE/
ARAA

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

RBERLEHE/
BRAT

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

RERLHS
/ERAA

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

40. Principal subsidiaries

BRATRBRRE/
AR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

1,331,131% T

US$1,331,131

Us$1

KRARHEL
BRARE/
ERRAEELS
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
E¥ &
Directly Indirectly

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

TEEH

Principal activities

RAZK

Investment holding

EEARRALM
REERZBAA

Holder of trade name
and other intellectual

property rights

EEARRALM
HMBERZRAA

Holder of trade name
and other intellectual

property rights

Y
/4

>

&
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NAER

Name of company

FREELRBARAR
Town Health Management

and Services Limited

FREERTR
RBERAF
Town Health Medical &

Dental Services Limited

RREBNHEERS
BRAF
Town Health Para-medical

Services Limited

40. FEH B A T @)

HMERY/
ERERER
Place of
incorporation/
kind of

legal entity

B/ ERRA
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

B/ ERAA

Hong Kong/

limited liability

company

B/ ERAA

Hong Kong/

limited liability

company

% W xR M OE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ST=F=A=-ALEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2003

40. Principal subsidiaries (continueq)

BRTRBRRE/
AR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

28T
HK$2

28T

HK$2

28T

HK$2

FARBEL
BERTRE/
i AR A B
Proportion
of nominal

value of issued

capital/registered
capital held
by the Company

E# F:
Directly Indirectly
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

TEEH

Principal activities

REERRTHRE
Provision of management
and administrative

services

REERHEEE
TR7% 5 R R
Provision of management
services, premises and
facilities to medical

practitioners

REGHRERE
REEER

Provision of para-medical
services and investment

holding

—EE=F5H

ERERBRZRERAZLA
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40. X EMB AT @ 40. Principal subsidiaries (continved)
FARBEL
BERTRE/
ERRFEELSH
EfAL/ BETRBRERA/ Proportion
HERERER R A of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
AL kind of share capital/ capital held TEXHK
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
B B#

Directly Indirectly

FRERRERY ABEARE/ E3m - 100% RERK
ARAT BRAR
Town Health Preventive British Virgin US$1 Investment holding
Healthcare Services Islands/
Limited limited liability
company
RRIMARAH B/ BRAF 2T - 100% BREFHPERS
Town Health Dental Hong Kong/ HK$2 Provision of dental
Limited limited liability consultation services
company
ERBEAEERAT B/ BRAR 28T - 100% MEERFEA
REBBRY
Health Matrix Network Hong Kong/ HK$2 Provision of network
Limited limited liability services to medical
company cardholders

Annual Report 2003
v
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NAER

Name of company

HAARAH

Wisesure Limited

REMAELERAF
Town Health Research

Centre Limited

FRESEEARAA

Audio Health Hearing Care
Limited

40. FEH B A T @)

HMERY/
ERERER
Place of
incorporation/
kind of

legal entity

BB/ ERRA

Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

B/ BRATH
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

AERAER/
ARAT

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

% W xR M OE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ST=F=A=-ALEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2003

40. Principal subsidiaries (continueq)

BRTRBRRE/
AR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

2,000/ 7T

HK$2,000

28T
HK$2

10,000% ¢

US$10,000

FARBEL
BERTRE/
o 1 AR A 1
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
E# F:
Directly Indirectly

- 76.4%

- 100%

- 51%

TEEH

Principal activities

MAmEREERE
R~ 53 Rk
Provision of management
services, premises and
facilities to medical

practitioners

BVEERBA
Holder of intangible

assets

Investment holding

—EE=F5H
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40. X EMB AT @

HRERY/
ERERER
Place of
incorporation/
AL kind of
Name of company legal entity
RREEEE (B ARAR B8 /FRAA
Audio Health Hearing Care Hong Kong/
(Hong Kong) Limited limited liability
company
REEBAE (VA)ERAA  FB/ERAH
Audio Health Hearing Care Hong Kong/
(Shatin) Limited limited liability
company
BEARAA FE/BRAT
Charter Most Limited Hong Kong/
limited liability
company

Annual Report 2003
v
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40. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

BRARMRRE/
AR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

1,000/ 70

HK$1,000

1,000/ 70

HK$1,000

28T

HK32

FARBEL
BERTRE/
i A AR A T £ L
Proportion
of nominal

value of issued

capital/registered
capital held
by the Company

B B#
Directly Indirectly
- 100%
- 70%
- 100%

TEEH

Principal activities

REENDERHAR
HENEERE

Provision of audio
diagnostic tests and sale

of hearing-aid devices

REENDERHAR
HENEERE

Provision of audio
diagnostic tests and
sale of hearing-aid

devices

REFLHhELE
BRPERER

Operation of a traditional
Chinese medicine retail
shop under a franchise

agreement

&
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NAEH

Name of company

EABRAA

Wishful Sincere Limited

ERPEREERAR
Town Health Traditional
Chinese Medicine

Services Limited

FREZLYHUBARAT

Town Health Bio-Medical
Technalogy Limited

40. FEH B A T @)

HMERL/
HERERRR
Place of
incorporation/
kind of

legal entity

BE/BRRA

Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

BE/BRRA
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

AERABR/
BRAT

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

% W xR M OE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-ST=F=A=-ALEE

For the year ended 31st March, 2003

40. Principal subsidiaries (continueq)

BRORMERE/
R A

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

1,000 7T

HK$1,000

28T
HK$2

1,000% 7T

US$1,000

KRARHEL
BRTRE/
i AR 2 fE L
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
E# F:
Directly Indirectly

- 51%

- 100%

100% -

TEEH

Principal activities

AARRMLERE
R m R R
Provision of management
services, premises and

facilities to medical

RAER

Investment holding

Investment holding

—EE=F5H

ERERBRZRERAZLA
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For the year ended 31st March, 2003

40. X EMB AT @

NAER

Name of company

Spring Biotech Limited

BABRAR
Bright Dignity Limited

A-Foot Professional Limited

Annual Report 2003

”

HRERY/
HERERER
Place of
incorporation/
kind of

legal entity

ERRLEHE/
BRAR

British Virgin
Islands/
limited liability

company

B/ BRAF
Hong Kong/

o

limited liability

company

&R/ BRAH
Hong Kong/
limited liability

company

40. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

BRARMRRE/
AR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/

registered capital

E

Uss1

100% T
HK$100

2B
HK$2

FARBEL
BERTRE/
ERRFEELSH
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued
capital/registered
capital held
by the Company
B B#
Directly

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Indirectly

TEEH

Principal activities

REER

Investment holding

BB R
Provision of medical

services

HERBER
Sales of healthcare

products

v

&
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40. FEH B A T @) 40. Principal subsidiaries (continved)
KRARHEL
BRTRE/
i AR 2 fE L
HRARL/ BRARMERE/ Proportion
HEREER R A of nominal
Place of Issued and value of issued
incorporation/ fully paid capital/registered
NEER kind of share capital/ capital held TEEH
Name of company legal entity registered capital by the Company Principal activities
E# F:

Directly Indirectly

UL ESIN £ BR/BRAA 10077 - 0% REXFREERB
AROA (137)
Harmonic Beauty and Body Hong Kong/ HK$100 Provision of beauty
Slimming Company Limited limited liability and skin care services
company
ERIHEZRREAEEREHE The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group
EREEAREZARENBEAR - & which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
ERACIEEMMBAR ZFAE affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
HEEHEHBNRITE - details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, results in particulars of excessive
length.
7 f8 [t /& 28 B0 6 4% 3K 6 A A o] By [ None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
RAERAEEZEBES ° subsisting at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.
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41, REBEFTEBE N[ 2 41. Summary of financial
MBEERNME information of the Group’s
major associates

UTABEBENTEERBE_ZT The following is a summary of financial information
—F =A==+t HLEFEZLEZY extracted from the audited financial statements of
BHEK - ARAKNEEATHE R RIALT WYT Holdings for the year ended 31st March, 2003
FEBRRERBHE_STET_F=H and the audited financial statements of WYT
ST BULEFEZRERVBRE Medicine and Luxembourg, the Group's former major
associates, for the year ended 31st March, 2002:
37 7T &= BE R
RERE
LT EEZER WYT
WYT Medicine &
Holdings Luxembourg
2003 2002
FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HE=A=+—HIFE Consolidated/combined results

me/ BHEE for the year ended 31st March:
ES-E Turnover 259,824 114,599
Br 3 AT (B3 18) & A (Loss) profit before taxation (26,615) 28,790
FHEEE Loss for the year (28,946) 24,457

R=A=+—H2 Consolidated/combined financial

RE/EHEBRKR position as at 31st March:

EREEE Non-current assets 216,510 8,505
mMBEE Current assets 103,175 70,564
nBaE Current liabilities (99,736) (25,916)
EMEBAE Non-current liabilities (133,915) (2,091)
86,034 51,062
AEEEGLEEESFE Net assets attributable to the Group 25,673 30,719

Annual Report 2003
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

£ RESULTS
BE=ZA=1t—HLEE
Year ended 31st March,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
FHET FAET FAET FAET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B Turnover 123,878 100,030 102,531 71,317 54,714
FEAN Net profit for
the year 4,741 2,029 32,050 23,666 16,478
BEx BALANCE SHEET
MK=B=+—8H
At 31st March,
2003 2002 2001 2000
&t FHET FE T TET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BREE Total assets 323,391 262,821 167,983 35,318
FEN=NE Total liabilities (68.441) (53,720) (52,990) (6,818)
DB RS Minority interests (69) (175) 31 -
REE & &R Surplus on

shareholders’ funds 254,881 208,926 114,962 28,500
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& RN-ZTZEZEFHARNBRAREEA

TRBZERRE - Bt - AEEEHE
REZBEERBRARN_ZZETF=A=

T—RAZEEERERX -

FIAREBEHZE-—NAANFRZ
A=+ BILRMEFESFZEETHE
BEARARRARZZEZETFTAABRIEZ
AR EIR - HEFZAR QA SR (D E & B
ERGAERABEIZER £ o

EX2NBE_ZTT=F=A=+—H1t
FEZEBEDREBARAHE_TT—
F —FE_FER_FTF=F=-A=1+—
BIEFEZFRMES G RE
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BALANCESHEET@MW%@

Notes:

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
24th August, 1999 and became the holding company of
the companies comprising the Group on 6th April, 2000
as a result of a group reorganisation and business
restructuring. Accordingly, the first published balance sheet
for the Group that has been prepared is as at 31st March,
2000.

The results of the Group for each of the two years ended
31st March, 1999 and 2000 presented above have been
extracted from the Company's prospectus dated 9th
October, 2000 when the listing of the Company’s shares
was sought on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The results for the three years ended 31st March, 2003
presented above have been extracted from the
consolidated income statement as set out in the Company's
annual report for the year 31st March, 2001, 2002 and
2003 respectively.
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